When telephoning, please ask for: Helen Tambini
Direct dial 0115 914 8320
Email democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Our reference:

Your reference:
Date: Wednesday, 23 November 2022

To all Members of the Council

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Council will be held on Thursday, 1 December 2022 at 7.00
pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West Bridgford to
consider the following items of business.

This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on
YouTube and viewed via the link: https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be
showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home
page until you see the video appear.

Yours sincerely

AF

Gemma Dennis
Monitoring Officer

AGENDA
Moment of Reflection
1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 September 2022 (Pages 1 - 22)

To receive as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting of the
Council held on Thursday, 29 September 2022.

4. Mayor's Announcements

5. Leader's Announcements

6. Chief Executive's Announcements
7. Citizens' Questions

To answer questions submitted by Citizens on the Council or its

Rushcliffe Borough
Council Customer
Service Centre

Fountain Court
Gordon Road
West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG2 5LN

Email:
customerservices
@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Telephone:
0115981 9911

www.rushcliffe.gov.uk

Opening hours:
Monday, Tuesday and
Thursday

8.30am - 5pm
Wednesday

9.30am - 5pm

Friday

8.30am - 4.30pm

Postal address
Rushcliffe Borough
Council

Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road

West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG27YG

M2 disability
A confident

EMPLOYER ——

RUSHCLIFFE - GREAT PLACE = GREAT LIFESTYLE = GREAT SPORT


https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC

services.
8. Petitions

To receive any petitions in accordance with Standing Order No. 10
and the Council’s Petitions Scheme.

9. Polling Districts and Polling Places (Pages 23 - 46)
The report of the Chief Executive is attached.

10. Renewal of Public Spaces Protection Order (General ASB) (Pages
47 - 88)

The report of the Director — Neighbourhoods is attached.
11. Notices of Motion

To receive Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order No.12
12. Questions from Councillors

To answer questions submitted by Councillors under Standing Order
No. 11(2)

Membership

Chairman: Councillor T Combellack

Vice-Chairman: Councillor D Mason

Councillors: R Adair, S Bailey, B Bansal, M Barney, K Beardsall, N Begum,
A Brennan, B Buschman, R Butler, N Clarke, J Cottee, G Dickman, A Edyvean,
M Gaunt, P Gowland, B Gray, L Healy, L Howitt, R Inglis, Mrs C Jeffreys, R Jones,
R Mallender, S Mallender, G Moore, J Murray, A Phillips, V Price, F Purdue-
Horan, S JRobinson, K Shaw, D Simms, J Stockwood, Mrs M Stockwood,
C Thomas, R Upton, D Virdi, J Walker, R Walker, L Way, G Wheeler, J Wheeler
and G Williams



Meeting Room Guidance

Fire Alarm Evacuation: In the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the
building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber. You
should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the
building.

Toilets: Are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first
floor.

Mobile Phones: For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is
switched off whilst you are in the meeting.

Microphones: When you are invited to speak please press the button on your
microphone, a red light will appear on the stem. Please ensure that you switch
this off after you have spoken.

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Recording at Meetings

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its
decision making. As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings
which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be
excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt

Rushcliffe Borough
Council Customer
Service Centre

Fountain Court
Gordon Road
West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG2 5LN

Email:
customerservices
@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Telephone:
0115981 9911

www.rushcliffe.gov.uk

Opening hours:
Monday, Tuesday and
Thursday

8.30am - 5pm
Wednesday

9.30am - 5pm

Friday

8.30am - 4.30pm

Postal address
Rushcliffe Borough
Council

Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road

West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG27YG

M2 disability
A confident

EMPLOYER ——

RUSHCLIFFE - GREAT PLACE = GREAT LIFESTYLE = GREAT SPORT



This page is intentionally left blank



25

26

27

Agenda Iltem 3

Ruehali MINUTES
Borouah Gounca OF THE MEETING OF THE
COUNCIL

THURSDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2022
Held at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena,
Rugby Road, West Bridgford
and live streamed on Rushcliffe Borough Council YouTube channel

PRESENT:

Councillors T Combellack (Chairman), D Mason (Vice-Chairman), R Adair,
S Bailey, B Bansal, M Barney, A Brennan, R Butler, N Clarke, J Cottee,
M Gaunt, P Gowland, B Gray, L Healy, R Inglis, Mrs C Jeffreys, R Jones,
R Mallender, S Mallender, G Moore, J Murray, A Phillips, V Price, F Purdue-
Horan, S J Robinson, K Shaw, J Stockwood, Mrs M Stockwood, C Thomas,
R Upton, D Virdi, JWalker, R Walker, L Way, G Wheeler, JWheeler and
G Williams

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

L Ashmore Director of Development and
Economic Growth

D Banks Director of Neighbourhoods

C Caven-Atack Service Manager - Corporate
Services

G Dennis Monitoring Officer

P Linfield Director of Finance and Corporate
Services

K Marriott Chief Executive

E Richardson Democratic Services Officer

H Tambini Democratic Services Manager

APOLOGIES:

Councillors K Beardsall, N Begum, B Buschman, A Edyvean, L Howitt and
D Simms

Declarations of Interest

Councillor Moore declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 10 Upper
Saxondale Community Governance Review.

Minutes of the Meeting held on 7 July 2022

The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 7 July 2022 were approved as a
correct record and signed by the Mayor.

Mayor's Announcements
The Mayor informed Council that she had attended many ceremonial duties
resulting from the recent sad death of Queen Elizabeth 1l and had been

particularly moved to open the book of condolence and lay the first floral tribute
to the late Queen. The Mayor reported that she had been invited to hear the

page 1



28

High Sherriff reading the first local proclamation of the accession of King
Charles 11l before opening her own scroll to read the proclamation in the centre
of West Bridgford. The Mayor had been honoured to represent the residents of
Rushcliffe at the ceremony at Southwell Minster and her local Act of
Remembrance both on the day before the late Queen’s funeral.

Aside from those very moving events, the Mayor reported that she had raised
the flag on Nottinghamshire Day, had also presided over many local events
such as the Radcliffe Carnival, Proms in the Park, Hickling Scarecrow Festival,
Lark in the Park, and lowered the start flag on the fifth day of the Tour of
Britain.

The Mayor also informed Council about the successful Civic Dinner, which had
showcased green living, climate change, environmental awareness,
sustainability, and conservation and had also allowed invited guests to find out
more about the Mayoral charities for this year. The Mayor invited her fellow
Councillors to look up the guest speaker, Professor Lucelia Rodrigues, a
passionate advocate of sustainable living who had delivered a really
informative and enlightening after dinner speech.

Finally, the Mayor asked Councillors to help her on Armistice Day and
Remembrance Sunday by laying wreaths of handmade poppies on her behalf
across the Borough.

Leader's Announcements

The Leader invited Councillors to attend the launch of new environmentally
sustainable facilities at Rushcliffe County Park on Wednesday, 12 October
2022.

The Leader provided Council with an update on the Borough’s participation in
the Homes for Ukraine scheme with so far, 167 sponsors having offered
support to 213 people. The concern was that up to 40% of initial sponsors had
decided not to continue their support past the initial six-month period and that
this would have a detrimental effect upon those Ukrainian families in need, as
well as suitable housing, and support services, in the Borough.

The Leader asked Councillors to encourage their local town and parish
councils to attend the Town and Parish Council Forum on Wednesday, 5
October 2022. He also reminded Councillors about the Budget Workshops
scheduled for 5 and 6 December 2022.

The Leader referred to the Rushcliffe Community Awards and called upon
Councillors to nominate local community groups and outstanding individuals for
the ceremony, which would be held at the end of November.

Finally, the Leader informed Council that Nottinghamshire County Cricket Club

had been promoted to the first division today and placed on record his
congratulations to the Club for this fantastic achievement.

page 2



29

30

31

Chief Executive's Announcements

The Chief Executive informed Council that the opening of the new leisure
centre in Bingham had been further delayed following an extremely challenging
period within the building industry. She advised that the Council was working
closely with the building contractors to overcome problems with supply chains
and available labour to complete the build before Christmas. The Chief
Executive reassured Council that despite the delays the project was still on
budget.

Citizens' Questions
No citizens’ questions were received for this meeting.
Business from the last Council meeting

The following Notice of Motion was proposed by Councillor Jones and
seconded by Councillor S Mallender

“‘UNICEF’s Child friendly status is relevant to Communities and Cities alike. It
emphasises that consultation is vital to developing our communities, including
where children and young people can:

e Have a say about decisions that affect them

Express their views freely and are encouraged and supported to do that
Access good health, education, transport, and other services

Feel safe, prioritised, and protected from discrimination and harm

Enjoy public spaces and meet other children and young people freely.

This Council resolves to investigate UNICEF’s Child Friendly City programme
to allow Rushcliffe to become a recognised Child Friendly Community and to
show that Rushcliffe is a place where children feel safe, are heard, cared-for,
and able to flourish.”

Councillor Jones informed Council, in moving the motion, that he was asking
for a policy commitment to investigate the UNICEF Child Friendly Community
programme with the aim of ensuring that all children were able to thrive, play
and learn in a safe environment, where their voices were heard and could
make a difference. Establishing a youth council for Rushcliffe, which was
already under investigation, would be one key step in supporting this wider
programme.

Councillor Jones stated that UNICEF worked with councils in cities across the
UK to help incorporate children’s rights in their decision making. The charity
offered training to councils to raise awareness of how decisions made by
councils could impact upon children and how to ensure those impacts were
positive and reflective of children’s voices. Councillor Jones recognised that it
might be determined that after investigation this programme was too
demanding but asked for that to be an informed decision following investigation
rather than a presumption. He concluded by stating that children had the right
to dignity, to be heard, and that they should be able to access the services and
support they needed without fear of discrimination and called upon the Council
to support the motion.

page 3



In seconding the motion, Councillor S Mallender stated that UNICEF would
support any local authority that committed to this programme, providing support
over a three-to-five-year programme not just to the Council but to its partners.
Councillor Mallender informed Council that some aspects of the programme
were more suitable for a county council or unitary authority but that did not
mean that the Borough Council could not make a difference to young people in
the Borough. She considered that the voices, needs, priorities and rights of the
child should be an integral part of the policies and decisions of the authority
and the Council’s involvement in this programme would ensure children of the
Borough were represented and able to influence the decisions that affected
them. Council noted that the UNICEF Child Friendly City programme was an
international programme and so some aspects including access to shelter and
food would thankfully not be relevant to this Borough. However, the Borough
could work towards the elimination of discrimination, work in the best interests
of children, and ensure that the views of children were respected, listened to
and taken into account in decisions that affected them.

Councillor Brennan informed Council that the Conservative Group had
reviewed the publicly available information on the UNICEF Child Friendly City
programme and had concluded that very few people would take issue with the
main purpose of this motion. However, Councillor Brennan argued, that many
of those things were already available to the young people of Rushcliffe, with a
wide range of open spaces and parks, support for both the Young and Positive
Futures programmes, and the Council was currently looking into establishing a
youth council for Rushcliffe. Councillor Brennan advised that this programme
operated in over 3,000 cites internationally and was designed to operate in
complex urban environments providing children with opportunities that they
might not otherwise have. It was not immediately clear how Rushcliffe could
engage in this programme and whether this additional burden in terms of
funding and administration would add much to what the Council already offered
young people in the Borough. Councillor Brennan informed Council that she
felt it was right to ask officers to look into the detail of the programme and to
talk to others who have been involved, to establish the benefit to Rushcliffe’s
young people. In order to provide officers with the scope to recommend not
getting involved, if after investigation, it was considered that it was not
appropriate to the Borough, Councillor Brennan proposed a small amendment
to the motion:

“This Council resolves to investigate UNICEF's Child Friendly City programme
to consider if Rushcliffe should apply to become a recognised Child Friendly
Community and to show that Rushcliffe is a place where children feel safe, are
heard, cared-for, and able to flourish.”

Councillor Moore seconded the amendment and reserved the right to speak.

Councillor Jones thanked Councillor Brennan for her support and accepted the
amendment.

There was no further debate on the amended motion and on being put to the
vote the motion was carried.

page 4



32

East Midlands Devolution Deal

The Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic and Borough-wide Leadership,
Councillor Robinson, presented the report of the Chief Executive, outlining the
East Midlands Devolution Deal.

The Leader referred to the Government’s Levelling Up Bill released in February
2020, which contained a commitment to devolution in all areas by 2030 and
noted that the Bill also contained a sub list of priority places, one of which was
Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire. Consequently, the four Upper Tier local
authorities of Nottingham City, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City
and Derbyshire County Council had expressed their interest. The Leader
explained that the devolution framework offered three levels of devolution, with
the top level, level three, being a Combined Authority with a Mayor. The
Leader confirmed that this was the level that the four Upper Tier authorities had
chosen to pursue and that subsequently, both he and the Chief Executive, had
been working with them and the Nottinghamshire district local authorities to
discuss shaping a deal, which would work for the D2N2 region. Council was
informed that discussions included looking at transport, adult skills, budgets
and referred to the offer of £1.14bn of Government funding over a thirty year
span, equating to £38m per year. The Leader added that this funding would be
seed capital, which could be borrowed against, and attract external investment.
The Leader stated that the Government had also offered introduction funding of
£18m to be spent by April 2023 and advised that it had been decided to
accelerate the Devolution Deal, with the four Upper Tier authorities signing an
in principle agreement in August 2022. The Leader confirmed that it was
important for Councillors to have time to reflect on the proposals, noting that
the proposal presented was an in principle deal rather than a final deal.
Council was advised that districts and boroughs were not signatories to the
deal, which had been signed by the four Upper Tiers. In terms of the roadmap
going forward, the Leader stated that work would continue to shape the
agreement, and the deal would then be taken to Full Council meetings of the
Upper Tier authorities before going out for consultation to businesses and
residents across the D2N2 region. Subject to the consultation, the deal would
then go to Parliament for primary and secondary legislation, an interim shadow
Board would be set up in May 2023, with a target for Mayoral elections to be
held in May 2024.

The Leader drew Council’s attention to section 4.7 of the report which set out
the potential powers and also to the brochure in Appendix 1.

In conclusion, the Leader explained that the deal offered potential delivery of
projects such as a fourth Trent Bridge crossing, HS2 connectivity and devolved
rail powers. The Leader confirmed that the deal was an in principle agreement
and that this was purely a discussion, as reflected in the recommendations,
and that any potential deal would be brought back to Full Council.

Councillor Brennan seconded the recommendation and reserved the right to
speak.

Councillor Gowland thanked the Leader for bringing the report before Full
Council and stated that the Labour Group believed in localism and devolution,

page 5



and in principle favoured the ideas, whilst also having many issues and
guestions regarding the proposal. Councillor Gowland referred to the
combination of councils and stated that it was not clear geographically why it
would be those two counties, and thought that this, amongst other things,
would confuse electors. Councillor Gowland considered that an additional
layer of bureaucracy would make matters worse, and that when people did not
know who was responsible for things it limited democracy, as they did not know
who was accountable. Councillor Gowland stated that the name of the deal
was inappropriate, as it was not an East Midlands deal, rather a
Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire deal, and there was also confusion with other
entities such as the Enterprise Zone and Freeport. In relation to the £1.14bn
over thirty years, Council was advised that although it was difficult to know how
many people were in the zone, this was likely to equate to about £15 per head
and Councillor Gowland questioned whether there was any evidence that the
pump priming would work.

In conclusion, Councillor Gowland questioned where the money would come
from, whether there was any guarantee that it would come, and questioned
why the deal had been pushed through in August. Councillor Gowland asked
about the costs and time taken by officers working on the deal, referred to the
lack of public consultation and stated that a face to face meeting to discuss the
deal would be welcomed.

Councillor Jones appreciated the report being brought before Full Council and
stated that everyone could see the attractions of coordinated travel, better skills
training and improving life in areas of poverty. Councillor Jones stated that the
Liberal Democratic Group was fully behind localisation and that in principle
functions moving out of Central Government was welcomed. Councillor Jones
advised that he did not consider that a Mayor was needed in order for powers
to be devolved, as local authorities could be required to work together and
operate the same Cabinet system as envisaged in this deal. Councillor Jones
stated that the cost of elections for Mayors and the tendency for them to
require a coterie around them would waste money and advising the public as to
who was responsible for what services would become vaguer. Councillor
Jones referred to the East Midlands area being wider than Nottinghamshire
and Derbyshire and so presumed that the arrangements in the report could be
extended at some point and asked, if so, how much money would come with
that. He stated that the £38m per year for thirty years sounded too appealing
and that without knowing the precise responsibility and powers, which would
fall to the new body it was meaningless. Councillor Jones said that, whilst
accepting that it was not Rushcliffe Borough Council’s responsibility, the report
lacked substance and that retrofitting and reducing areas of poverty could
easily use that money across all of Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire.

In conclusion, Councillor Jones stated that the report was full of nice
aspirations but lacked precision and asked that it be recorded that the Liberal
Democrat Group did not endorse the report.

Councillor R Mallender noted the interesting ideas in the document and
considered that having a bigger voice for D2N2 would be good but asked what
opportunities there would be for other parts of the East Midlands to join in the
future should they so wish, and what would happen to other projects such as

page 6



the Freeport and East Midlands Development Corporation should
Leicestershire or Leicester city wish to join. Councillor Mallender also referred
to Bristol, where people had recently voted to no longer have a City Council
Mayor, whilst retaining their Combined Authority Executive Mayor, and asked
whether there would be an opportunity to expand that in the future. Reference
was also made to Northamptonshire, suggesting that there were potential
aspects for future consideration. Councillor Mallender agreed with the idea of
devolving power to the area, which aligned with the Green Group principles,
and considered that decisions should be taken at the most appropriate level.
Councillor Mallender thought that some of the ideas in the proposal, such as
levelling up the housing stock and training, were very good, but questioned
whether there would be any added value from the Combined Authority or
whether the money could be spent more effectively through existing local
authorities. He asked why devolved powers could not be given to local
authorities who were closer to local residents and questioned how residents
would react to decisions being taken by an elected Mayor, who would be
responsible for such a large geographical area.

In conclusion, Councillor Mallender stated that it was important to continue to
be involved but suggested that this should not be taken as a done deal, adding
that there were plenty of other options available and other ways to represent
the people of Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire.

Councillor Thomas advised that she would prefer to see Central Government
support Local Government through a sustained funding formula and
guestioned whether it was devolution in any real sense or an extra layer of
governance, which took decisions further away from local people. Councillor
Thomas considered that Rushcliffe did not have a real seat at the table for the
proposals and the costs, whether funded by the precept or revenue funded by
Government, was all extra money to be found. Councillor Thomas stated that
there was also the extra complexity involved and thought that enough time was
already spent signposting requests to the existing two layers of Local
Government and asked whether a fourth layer was required. Councillor
Thomas also questioned why it was to be called the East Midlands Mayoral
Authority and advised that parts of Rushcliffe looked to Leicestershire and
Lincolnshire as much as to Nottinghamshire and thought that it needed a
different name. Councillor Thomas stated that Rushcliffe would need to fight
hard to benefit from any funding from the new authority and that it would not be
a level playing field, alongside the larger Upper Tier authorities. Councillor
Thomas suggested that Rushcliffe had to be prepared and very clear about its
strategic priorities, requiring fully costed, oven ready projects for when
opportunities arrived, and stated that officers were very good at this and
needed to support Councillors to come up with ideas when business cases
needing to be prepared. Working on issues including insulating homes, taking
forward Rushcliffe’s Net Zero Action Plan, getting brown field sites ready to
benefit from affordable housing schemes, and working out what Rushcliffe’s
priorities were in terms of transport needs would be required, so that they could
be easily articulated into specific terms.

In conclusion, Councillor Thomas stated that she could not personally endorse

the plans for a Mayoral Combined Authority and noted that the motion did not
ask Councillors to do that, although perhaps it should. Councillor Thomas

page 7



stated that she did support the recommendation for the Leader and Chief
Executive to continue to engage with the process and advised that she would
abstain from voting.

Councillor S Mallender referred to suggested benefits including a better
connected future, combined transport plans, developing smarter ticketing
systems and concessionary fare schemes and noted that the first thing
mentioned by the Leader had been a controversial road scheme.

The Leader clarified that he had referred to a bridge, not a road scheme.

Councillor Mallender advised that a rail bridge would be a very good idea; and
went on to say that she was very worried that a greener future with new low
carbon homes and retrofitting had been heard before; however, nothing had
happened. Council was advised that local authorities were still working with a
planning system coming from Central Government, which resulted in the
Council being unable to say what kind of developments it wanted in
environmental standards terms. Councillor Mallender stated that the Council
would not really have any say in obtaining any of those benefits and was
concerned about future Government policy and a lack of investment in local
public transport.

In conclusion, Councillor Mallender stated that although she hoped to be
proved wrong, she had grave doubts about the promises being made and
could not endorse the idea but thought it very important that Rushcliffe
remained in discussions.

Councillor Barney acknowledged that there was much uncertainty regarding
the detail and how it would unfold, but that he drew much encouragement from
the process getting to this point. In a world of very challenging politics
Councillor Barney was pleased that councils were working together to look at
what could be done to get more money into the East Midlands. Councillor
Barney said that whilst it was possible to be cynical, the reality as it stood was
that this promised to bring much needed money to the area, which he
applauded and encouraged to continue.

In conclusion, Councillor Barney referred also to the benefits of an Elected
Mayor and advised that the East Midlands lagged behind other areas in terms
of attracting investments, as businesses and organisations looked for areas
where they could have a face to face conversation with an individual, and an
Elected Mayor would fulfil that role, as witnessed in other areas of the country.
Councillor Barney hoped for a great outcome from devolution for the region
and hoped that it would include Leicester.

Councillor J Walker echoed the gratitude already expressed in bringing this
report to Full Council and thought that it had been useful, although she
questioned what kind of authority would be granted to local authorities as part
of the devolution deal. Councillor Walker referred to the proposed new Mayor
and asked whether the new Mayor would be able to authorise core
development, or could the new Mayor authorise things such as fracking.
Councillor Walker stated that more detail was required about what kind of
authority would be granted.

page 8



Councillor Way stated that there were a lot of positives from the proposal, such
as integrated transport, which was needed as the area had connectivity
problems, but thought that there were also areas of concern, for example the
Prosperity Fund would become part of the responsibilities of the new
organisation rather than how it was currently controlled locally. Councillor Way
stated that in the Government paper a huge amount of autonomy would be
given to the Mayor and whilst she noted that there would also be a Cabinet
system, it would be a small Cabinet by her understanding, and she was
concerned that Councils such as Rushcliffe would not have much say.

In conclusion, Councillor Way stated that although she had many concerns
about the proposal and thought that it required a lot more discussion, she
supported the proposal that it should come back to Full Council for more
discussion, or discussion outside of Council, and it was important that
Rushcliffe had a seat at the table to convey the Borough'’s point of view.

Councillor Brennan thought that the proposal was interesting and whilst people
might have different perspectives and want different resolutions, she
considered that many would share the same questions and concerns and
agreed that there were questions still to be answered. Councillor Brennan
stated that the East Midlands in its broader sense had historically been
underfunded and as a former Deputy Chief Executive of the Regional
Development Agency, she was aware that one of the main reasons that the
area did not receive funding was because it could not work in partnership.
Councillor Brennan explained that the Chairman of the Regional Development
Agency also did not have the statutory powers that local authorities had, and
the local authorities had been unable to work together for a range of reasons.
Councillor Brennan stated that if it was possible to create a means by which
local authorities were able and willing to share their sovereignty to deliver those
types of objectives that could only be a good thing, as the East Midlands
continued to remain underfunded and without a voice in Westminster or in
Europe. Whilst being in favour of the deal, Councillor Brennan shared the
concerns raised regarding costs, how it would work, where power would reside
and how it would be funded. In respect of the geography of the area,
Councillor Brennan confirmed that considerable time had been spent looking at
this and stated that there was an economic sense to the D2N2 area and whilst
it was not perfect, this did not mean that it should not go ahead.

In conclusion, Councillor Brennan recognised the need to protect the interests
of local residents and the need to have a voice in discussions, and on that
basis, seconded the recommendations that the Borough Council continued in
discussions to argue vociferously for the needs of the Borough in the overall
ambition.

The Leader thanked Councillors for their constructive comments, which would
be useful to himself and the Chief Executive to take back and he suggested
that there should be a workshop to discuss ideas further. The Leader assured
Councillors that districts were shaping proposals and were being listened to,
with the Upper Tier authorities making it clear that districts needed to be
involved, with seats on the Cabinet and having a direct say and voting rights as
to how the Combined Authority would be run. In respect of the geographical

page 9



33

area, the Leader considered that it was a starting point and Government had
agreed that other areas could join, for example Leicestershire. The Leader
confirmed that the D2N2 area incorporated 2.2m people so was a large area in
itself. The Leader referred to funding, which had a guarantee against it, for
thirty years of £38m per year and to other existing Combined Authorities, which
had generated significant borrowings and private investment, which had
delivered successful projects, such as the Manchester tram system. The
Leader stated that businesses needed someone to talk to, someone who they
could approach if they wanted to bring their business to the region and
guestioned who that would currently be. With a Combined Authority it would
be clear that it was the Mayor who would hold accountability and be able to
open up those opportunities. The Leader noted that roads and railways could
not be built just for Rushcliffe, that the boroughs were interconnected, and he
referred to the suggested bridge and explained that it could be a tram or a train
bridge and that a Combined Authority would allow the local area to have
control and budget for the best option. The Leader noted comments about the
infighting and lack of coordination currently, which detracted from investment.
The Leader referred to comments about the various bodies in the region, all of
which had their own administrations and all of which could be brought together
under the one umbrella of the Combined Authority. In particular, the Leader
highlighted that the D2N2 LEP, which was a great delivery body, and could
become more efficient under the Combined Authority as part of one local voice
for business. The Leader referred to accountability and explained that the
Mayor had a Cabinet and could not make decisions without going through that
Cabinet, which would provide checks and balances. The Leader confirmed
that planning powers would remain with the boroughs, whilst still being subject
to the national planning framework which was a separate matter.

The Leader summarised that he appreciated the support and comments this
evening which he and the Chief Executive would take forward and affirmed his
commitment to holding a workshop.

It was RESOLVED

a) that progress to date on the devolution and joint working programme,
including the announcement of a deal offer from Government on 30
August 2022 be noted;

b) that Council agreed that the Leader and Chief Executive should
continue to engage with the process in order to ensure that Rushcliffe
Borough Council can be represented as far as possible in ongoing
discussions; and

c) that a further update to be brought to Full Council on the completion of
negotiations.

Upper Saxondale Community Governance Review

Having declared an interest, Councillor Moore did not participate in the debate
or vote for this item.

The Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic and Borough Wide Leadership,

page 10



Councillor Robinson, presented the report of the Chief Executive, outlining the
Upper Saxondale Community Governance Review.

The Leader explained that in December 2021, the Council had received a
petition for it to hold a governance review for the area of Upper Saxondale. A
cross party Task and Finish Group had then been established, and the Leader
referred to documentation circulated with the report which set out the Terms of
Reference for the Group, which included the proposed boundary and
Councillor set up. The Leader confirmed that Nottinghamshire County Council
had considered and accepted the proposals. The Leader explained that
several referendums had been held which had received a few negative
comments, including from the Chairman of Saxondale Parish and from
Cropwell Butler Parish Council, which had been considered by the Group.
The Leader confirmed that the Group had recommended bringing a proposal to
Full Councill to create a separate parish for the area of Upper Saxondale as
defined by the map in Appendix Three of the report. The Leader referred to the
report, which had concluded that the proposals represented the best model for
effective governance for this community and considered that this comment
reflected the ultimate in devolution to the local community. The Leader
commented that the community of Upper Saxondale had been engaged and
involved in looking after their locality.

In conclusion, the Leader explained that, if agreed at Full Council, the proposal
would then go the Secretary of State, with a target for elections in May 2023,
with any logistical matters being supported by Rushcliffe Borough Council.

Councillor Inglis confirmed that he had Chaired the cross party Task and Finish
Group, which had voted unanimously in support of the proposal and confirmed
that appropriate steps had been taken to ensure that objectives and legalities
for Rushcliffe Borough Council were met in the appropriate areas. Councillor
Inglis explained that the proposal was what residents had asked for as
demonstrated by the 95.2% of respondents who were in favour, and on that
basis, Councillor Inglis stated that he was happy to support the decision of the
Task and Finish Group and seconded the recommendation.

Councillor J Walker said that the Labour Group supported the recommendation
and the creation of the new parish.

Councillor Jones advised that at the second meeting of the Task and Finish
Group he had raised questions about the likely increased cost of the new
parish council and whilst, unfortunately, he had not been able to attend the
third meeting, he saw from the notes of that meeting that this issue had not
been addressed. Councillor Jones stated that for such a defined community
the response rate had been low; however, his colleagues in the Working Group
supported the recommendation and so, reluctantly, he would support it also.

Councillor S Mallender confirmed that the Green Group supported the
recommendation and asked in future if meetings could start later than 5pm, to
allow Councillors who worked the opportunity to attend them.

Councillor Shaw confirmed that the Leake Independent Group was very happy
to support the recommendation and congratulated the residents on their

page 11



34

initiative, and hoped that more would be formed, including perhaps in West
Bridgford.

Councillor Butler agreed that this was a positive story, referred to the
establishment and work of the Task and Finish Group, and that hopefully the
residents would achieve their goal. Councillor Butler stated that this was a
good example of democracy in action and the differing roles that councils had
to play, he welcomed the recommendations and congratulated the residents,
and all involved in the quick processing of the proposal.

Councillor Gowland explained that she had been a member of the Task and
Finish Group and agreed that it had been very well run and had reached the
right decision. Councillor Gowland reiterated that it was a good example of
democracy in action and provided an effective model of governance for this
community, who were engaged, loved their area, and looked after it. Councillor
Gowland added that West Bridgford was similar, and residents would enjoy
having this too.

Councillor Upton stated that on behalf of his fellow Board Members at Radcliffe
on Trent Parish Council, he supported the recommendation, as Upper
Saxondale was very much a separate community geographically and in many
other ways and this was a good proposal.

The Leader thanked Councillors for their support, congratulated local residents
and stated that the Borough Council looked forward to them becoming a parish
and working with them in the future.

It was RESOLVED

a) that a separate parish for the area defined by the map in Appendix
Three be created and that:

this area be named Upper Saxondale

this area have a parish council

this council be called Upper Saxondale Parish Council
Upper Saxondale Parish Council has seven members; and

b) that delegated authority be granted to the Chief Executive to undertake
the necessary steps to formalise the creation of a separate parish for
Upper Saxondale.

Approval of the Scrutiny Annual Reports 2021/22

The Leader and Portfolio Holder for Strategic and Borough-wide Leadership,
Councillor Robinson presented the report of the Director — Finance and
Corporate Services providing a review of the work undertaken by the Council’s
four Scrutiny Groups during 2021/22. The Leader invited each of the Scrutiny
Group Chairmen to deliver a brief summary of the work of each Group over the
year.

Councillor Combellack, former Chairman of the Corporate Overview Group,
reminded Council that on becoming Mayor, she had stood down as Chairman

page 12



of this Group. Councillor Combellack stated that she had found the position
very rewarding and welcomed the more proactive, inclusive scrutiny regime,
which was now successfully in place. Council noted that the Group had
scrutinised the impact of Covid-19, both on the Council’s staff, ways of working,
delivery of services and residents, and she thanked officers for their hard work
during such challenging times. Councillor Combellack in particular thanked
officers responsible for producing the Covid reports, which had been so
extensive, that it had required two reports, to look at both internal and external
factors. The Council’s resilience throughout the pandemic was highlighted,
and the Group had scrutinised the positive and negative aspects of the
Council’'s working practices throughout that period, with that analysis added to
the Council's Response Programme, should a similar event occur again.
Councillor Combellack advised that she had continued to meet with other
councillors and councils via the virtual East Midlands Council meetings to
exchange views and ideas. It was hoped that through training and improved
communication, Councillors would have a better understanding of the value
and process of scrutiny in policy making, including a simpler scrutiny matrix,
which it was hoped all Councillors were using.

Councillor Combellack concluded by thanking all Scrutiny Group Chairmen and
Vice-chairmen for their valued assistance throughout the year and wished them
all the best in their roles.

Councillor Virdi, Chairman of the Governance Scrutiny Group referred to the
importance of scrutiny in challenging and influencing how Council made its
decisions, to ensure the continued delivery of high quality services. Council
was reminded that the Group had a broad spectrum of responsibilities to
scrutinise, and actions taken to ensure the probity and soundness of the
Council’s decision making. Councillor Virdi stated that over the past year the
Group had judiciously and robustly scrutinised the Council’s finances,
approach to risk as well as other corporate issues, including the Statement of
Accounts, Annual Governance Statement, Capital Investment Strategy, Annual
Fraud Report, and Internal Audit and Risk Management reports. Councillor
Virdi highlighted key points in the report, which included the positive comments
from the Internal Auditors that the Council had a substantial system of internal
control in the highest rating, which was a significant achievement. A positive
Going Concern Assessment had been achieved; the Council had healthy
returns based on its Capital Investment Strategy, the Annual Audit letter had
provided reasonable assurance that the Council’s financial statements were
free from material error, together with a positive performance on the Council’s
commercial property portfolio. Councillor Virdi advised that members of the
Group had requested additional information to help improve Risk Management
and any mitigating actions, to allow members to see how officers were making
internal risk decisions.

Councillor Virdi concluded by stating that this had been another challenging
year for the Group and the Council; however, he advised that due to the
dedication of staff and Councillors, and careful management in previous years,
the Council had managed exceptionally well, despite the exceedingly difficult
circumstances. Council noted that there were still uncertain times ahead,
where the Council’s financial resilience would be tested, and it was
encouraging to note that the appropriate governance measures were in place.

page 13



35

Councillor Virdi thanked his Vice-chairman, Councillor Gray for his support
throughout the year, together with other members of the Group and officers for
their hard work.

Councillor J Wheeler, former Chairman of the Communities Scrutiny Group
stated that the Group had considered a variety of topics including WISE:
Environmental Crime Enforcement, the Carbon Management Plan and Police
performance and resources in Rushcliffe. The outbreak of Covid-19 had
undoubtedly led to challenges for local communities; however, Councillor
Wheeler advised that the Group had continued to monitor on-going projects
undertaken by the Council. Councillor Wheeler thanked officers who had
supported the Group, all members of the Group for their active involvement
and the Vice-chairman Councillor Bansal.

Councillor Clarke, Chairman of the Growth and Development Group advised
that the Group had scrutinised many interesting topics, including the River
Trent Footbridge crossing, which had involved liaison with the City Council,
cycling networks, which had involved cycling groups and the County Council,
and Community Infrastructure Levy updates. In respect of Covid-19, Councillor
Clarke referred to the considerable work undertaken by officers in
administering the Government business recovery grants, and the plaudits the
Council had received for that. Councillor Clarke stated that tree conservation
had been considered and emphasised what an important issue this was. The
Group had also discussed planning communications, which could be a
contentious topic for those directly involved, and it was therefore important to
scrutinise it.

In conclusion, Councillor Clarke thanked the Service Manger — Economic
Growth and her team, other officers who had attended meetings, the former
Vice-chairman Councillor Butler and other members of the Group.

Councillor Brennan added her thanks to all members of the scrutiny groups,
noted the extensive work undertaken by them and seconded the
recommendation.

Councillor J Walker, Councillor Jones, Councillor R Mallender and Councillor
Shaw all added their thanks and endorsed the report.

The Leader, on behalf of Cabinet thanked Councillors for the committed and
professional work undertaken by the scrutiny groups, and thanked officers for
the considerable help and support given to those groups. The Leader
reiterated the fundamental importance of scrutiny to the Council, which was
appreciated by all.

It was RESOLVED that the work undertaken by the four Scrutiny Groups
during 2021/22 be endorsed.

Exclusion of Public
It was resolved that under Regulation 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities

(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on

page 14



36

37

the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.

Update on former Officers’ Mess RAF Syerston, Flintham

The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing, Councillor Upton
presented the report of Director — Development and Economic Growth
providing an update on the former Officers’ Mess RAF Syerston, Flintham.

It was RESOLVED that Council endorsed the proposed actions set out within
the report and granted delegated authority to the Director for Development and
Economic Growth and the s151 Officer, in discussion with the Cabinet Portfolio
Holders for Finance and Planning and Housing, to progress an application for a
Compulsory Purchase Order of the former Officers’ Mess at RAF Syerston,
Flintham, up to the value as set out in the report. Where there is an increase in
the value of the Compulsory Purchase Order, a further report will be taken to
Cabinet.

Notices of Motion

a. The following Notice of Motion was proposed by Councillor J Walker and
seconded by Councillor Gaunt.

“Improving the energy efficiency of homes is vital to help the residents of
Rushcliffe who are in the middle of an economic crisis. We call on central
government to facilitate a simpler, less chaotic, and less bureaucratic
system of aiding local government to deliver home energy improvement
schemes to those most in need:

1. End the bidding system for all relevant schemes that takes up valuable
officer time and resources when it could be better spent making the
changes needed to ease the economic disparity and suffering, we are
seeing.

2. Stop funding schemes on an annual basis and move to much longer
time frames which will encourage local business and much needed
skills to develop in this sector whilst also facilitating larger scale
delivery of projects.”

Councillor J Walker informed Council, in moving the motion that she had felt
compelled to try and do something, although since writing the motion, the
situation had become worse. She acknowledged that everyone could take
simple steps to save money; however, there was no one in the Chamber who
could deny the fear and worry coming from local communities, regarding their
financial uncertainty. Councillor Walker advised that she had been approached
by village leaders in Ruddington to set up warm spaces for residents to access
during the winter, which was a dreadful prospect to consider. The situation had
been horribly juxtaposed by the recent removal of the top rate 45% of Income
Tax, an action, which was callous and unhuman, and at best irresponsible, and
Councillor Walker urged Councillors to support the motion, to ensure that the
Council could start to improve on its workings and processes before the winter.
Councillor Walker stated that this would be a start of some cross-party action,

page 15



as doing nothing was not an option.
Councillor Gaunt seconded the motion and reserved the right to speak.

Councillor Brennan advised that the Government was taking action and had
recently announced £64 billion to help with household energy costs. Councillor
Brennan stated that she would not address the other issues raised by
Councillor Walker, as they had no bearing on the motion. In respect of
insulating homes, it was noted that the Council had a strong track record in this
area, with substantial funding secured from LAD 2 and 3, together with funding
for off-grid homes to retro fit and provide up to date insulation and
improvements in energy efficiency. Council noted that those practical schemes
had been delivered and had benefitted many residents. Reference had been
made to Government schemes being chaotic; however, Councillor Brennan
stated that no examples had been provided of that, and whilst it was
acknowledged that schemes could be bureaucratic, appropriate checks were
required. In respect of the use of officer time and the completion for resources,
Councillor Brennan did agree that it took up officer time; however, competitive
bidding could be extremely useful in focusing resources and ensuring that the
most innovative and value for money projects coming forward. Councillor
Brennan did acknowledge that if funding was not awarded, it could be argued
that there were more equitable ways of distributing that funding. Councillor
Brennan agreed that in respect of longer term funding, it would be helpful to
have longer timeframes to bring plans forward. It was very welcome that in the
Devolution Deal the importance of energy efficiency was recognised, and
Council noted that significant funding would be made available for the retro
fitting of housing and devolved to the boroughs to enable works on a more
strategic level. Councillor Brennan stated that everyone would agree that
having a strategic approach to resources, which would help with planning and
efficient delivery would be beneficial. Given that the Devolution Deal should be
approved, and the funding delivered, the issue for this motion was timing, and
Councillor Brennan advised that the Conservative Group would not be
supporting the motion. However, Council was advised that if the Devolution
Deal did not address this and did not provide for more strategic funding at a
borough level, that it would be appropriate to bring the motion back, at the
beginning of the next financial year.

Councillor Jones, confirmed that the Liberal Democrat Group would be
supporting the motion as local authorities and more importantly residents,
needed more certainty and a steady process by which Government supported
energy improvement schemes. Councillor Jones considered that the current
‘trickle-down’ Government should understand that a regular trickle over a
longer timescale was far better and a more efficient use of staff time, than the
on-off annual gambling bidding processes.

Councillor S Mallender confirmed that the Green Group would be supporting
the motion, acknowledged the very difficult time everyone was facing with the
enormous increase in energy prices and stated that it was vital that people
most in need had improvements to their homes, to reduce their energy bills.
Councillor Mallender also stated that rather than mentioning all the time that
more energy was needed, the most important point was that too much energy
was being used in the first place, and if energy could be saved, less would

page 16



need to be produced, better insulation and micro-generation would help that.

Councillor Thomas noted the comments made by Councillor Brennan regarding
the Devolution Deal; however, she considered that action needed to be taken
before then and advised that the Leake Independent Group would be
supporting the motion. Councillor Thomas stated that reducing energy
consumption and costs to households was so important in this current crisis
and the grant funding schemes certainly seemed chaotic. It was noted that
officers were doing a great job working alongside other agencies to deliver
benefits despite this, and Councillor Thomas advised that last year she had
been privileged to accompany officers around part of her ward identified for
support, and despite the advance publicity, they had been met with some
suspicion.  Councillor Thomas referred to the many scam and bogus
organisations taking advantage of the confusion and stated that what was
needed was a clearly badged public scheme, delivered via local government,
with a well ordered application process and clear eligibility criteria so that the
public could have confidence in it. Council noted that steady progress would
not be achieved by this patchwork of stop-start “initiatives” and more could be
done by Rushcliffe and Nottinghamshire County Council, for instance by
developing a group buying scheme for solar panels.

The Leader stated that in the Devolution Deal, £18m would be available to
support housing, with £9m of that for retro-fitting, which was exactly what the
motion was about, and in respect of timescales, this money had to be spent by
April 2023. The importance of the issue had been recognised and was a major
part of the Devolution Deal, with funding allocated to Rushcliffe and the Leader
reiterated that this motion was not currently relevant.

Councillor Gowland stated that yesterday the Government had given £1.5
billion to cover 130,000 houses, and she considered that £9m would not cover
many houses, billions of pounds would be required. Training people to
undertake the work would also be key, and it was hoped the Deal would cover
that.

Councillor Gaunt, having reserved his right to speak, felt that everything that
Councillor Walker had said had been relevant, given what was happening
nationally, and stated that as the Devolution Deal had yet to be agreed, the
current motion was timely to indicate how Rushcliffe wanted to move forward.
Councillor Gaunt referred to the difficult choices people were having to make
every day, and he considered that this motion would help residents to get the
home energy improvements they needed. Councillor Gaunt advised that in
2006, the previous Government had a law in place to say that all homes would
be net zero by 2016, and that had been changed in 2011, and this motion was
asking for some changes to be made to mitigate the decision in 2011.

Councillor Walker disagreed that the Devolution Deal would help people this
winter, whilst this motion would provide immediate, practical help and she could
not understand why it could not be supported.

On being put to the vote the motion was lost.

b. The following Notice of Motion was proposed by Councillor Way and

page 17



seconded by Councillor Gowland.

Prior to presenting her motion Councillor Way informed the Mayor that she
wished to make a small alteration under Standing Order 14 (highlighted in
italics below). After outlining the alteration, consent was given by Council and
Councillor Way proceeded to move the motion.

“‘Recognising that hedges have a positive effect for both wildlife and the
amenity of residents, and play a vital role in carbon reduction, this Council
adopts a strategic aim to protect hedges within the Borough and to
increase our hedgerow network by 40% by 2050 as recommended by the
Climate Change Committee*.

To further this strategic aim, Council will:

1. Ask scrutiny to oversee, by March 2023, a review of the legal and
policy framework for the protection and enhancement of hedges
including use of planning conditions and consider a methodology for
recording new and lost hedges

2. Ask the Local Development Framework group to look at strengthening
policies to protect hedges and create new hedges in the next version of
the local plan

3. Develop an action plan to establish a baseline and set out an ambitious
route to achieve the target of 40% increase in the hedgerow network as
soon as possible

4. Further promote best practice advice for the management and
maintenance of hedgerows in our own operations and with the public,
partners, and landowners, including promoting National Hedgerow
Week in October 2022.”

*The Climate Change Committee is an independent, statutory body
established under the Climate Change Act 2008.

Councillor Way informed Council, in moving the altered motion, that hedges
and hedgerows had a positive effect on wildlife and residents playing a vital
role in carbon reduction; however, due to large scale development they were
being lost at an alarming rate. New hedges took years to establish, and they
never achieved the level of biodiversity that established hedges had benefitted
from. Following the Council’s recent promotion of the Hedgehog Highway, it's
No Mow Policy and a reduction in the use of pesticides, the protection and
extension of hedge and hedgerows felt like the next natural step.

Councillor Way advised that the Campaign for the Protection of Rural England
stated that hedgerows were essential to soak up carbon, protect against
flooding and aid nature’s recovery. Council was informed that some hedges
were protected under government legislation but as was often the case, this
was very complex and left many hedgerows unprotected. The Climate Change
Committee and CPRE recommended increasing the hedgerow network by 40%
by 2050; and Councillor Way hoped that the Council could be more ambitious
than that. She went on to say that evidence suggested that the country had
lost 50% of its hedgerows since the end of the second world war, with
hedgerows that remained often subject to overcutting, which reduced

page 18



biodiversity and mechanical cutting that sometimes damaged hedges beyond
survival. Fortunately, this situation could be improved with proper management
as demonstrated in her ward.

In conclusion, Councillor Way stated that Rushcliffe was a mainly rural
Borough, and this motion called upon the Council to do more to protect existing
hedges and hedgerows within the Borough as well as actively increasing the
number of hedges and hedgerows and raising awareness about the
importance of hedges with residents and developers.

Councillor Gowland seconded the motion and reserved the right to speak.

In supporting the motion, Councillor Upton recognised that hedgerows were a
valuable part of the Borough and that the Council had limited powers to protect
hedgerows. However, he did see hedgerow protection legislation being used
where possible despite its complexity and Council was informed that under
certain circumstances the Borough Council could enforce replacement
planting. Councillor Upton advised Council that the Conservative Group would
be supporting this motion to protect as much hedging as it could and work
towards increasing the Borough’s network of hedgerows as part of its work on
Biodiversity Net Gain.

Councillor Price informed Council that the Liberal Democrat Group fully
supported the motion and reported that she had recently attended a meeting of
the Sharphill Stakeholder Group and had heard that many hedges that had
been removed by the developer would now be replaced after Council
intervention.

Councillor R Mallender stated that the Green Party would also be supporting
the motion and suggested that perhaps the Council could run a free hedges
scheme following the success of its free trees scheme to increase hedge
planting for the benefit of the environment as well as wildlife in the area. He
stated that he would be keen to see town and parish councils get involved to
increase the number of hedges over the 40% set.

Councillor Barney congratulated Councillor Way on bringing this motion to the
attention of Council and described Councillor Way as a ‘woman of action’
having seen her making a real difference on the ground in East Leake recently.

Councillor Gowland, having reserved her right to speak, thanked the Council
for this support and stressed the importance of hedges and hedgerows to
carbon capture and the biodiversity of wildlife in the Borough. She asked
Council if they knew the old meaning of ‘Rushcliffe’ and quoted from Wikipedia
that Rushcliffe was the "cliff where brushwood grows" with brushwood being an
old term for small trees and shrubs, in effect hedges. She called for Rushcliffe
to be true to its roots and become known for its hedges once again.

Councillor Way thanked Councillors for all of the supportive comments and was
pleased that the motion appeared to be supported by all parties.

On being put to the vote the motion was carried.

page 19



38

Questions from Councillors

a. Question from Councillor J Walker to Councillor Brennan

‘Residents would like more secure bike storage at the arena and
throughout the borough. Could RBC look to include bike storage, like that
located in the Bridgford Road car park and the around Nottingham City,
for other locations in and around Rushcliffe?”

Councillor Brennan responded by stating that it was a significant challenge to
provide a completely secure storage facility, which also had public access. For
example, the unit in central West Bridgford was linked to a City card scheme
and the Council did explore if it could create something similar to work with the
Parkwood membership card but this would require significant investment
including electrical supply. However, the Council recognised that there had
been problems with cycle thefts at the Arena, so in addition to the various
CCTV cameras that have been installed, an additional cycle rack next to the
entrance doors had been installed, right in front of the temporary desks
allowing good oversight by Parkwood customers and staff. Additionally, if
customers used an appropriate D style lock, then this should afford a very good
level of protection. Councillor Brennan advised that since the Council had
taken this action the situation with bike thefts had much improved.
Furthermore, as part of the Council’'s emerging Walking and Cycling Strategy,
the Council would continue to explore opportunities such as at the new
Bingham Arena to create more cycle parking and secure storage at appropriate
locations and within its resources.

b.  Question from Councillor Gowland to Councillor Inglis

“Given the proposed reduction in the Fire Service in West Bridgford, will
Rushcliffe undertake a public information campaign on fire safety (in the
same way as it supports the police in security campaigns)?”

Councillor Inglis responded by stating that any such decision would be made
by the Fire Authority. The Fire Service was a part of the South Notts
Community Safety Partnership, which was a statutory body under the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998, which had the aim of bringing agencies and
communities together to tackle crime and Anti-Social Behaviour in the local
community. As a result, the Council already regularly shared comm’s
messages including allied ‘community risks’ such as fire safety. Therefore if the
Fire Service made this change and created an information campaign as part of
their mitigation, the Council would always seek to support and promote that.
The cuts had yet to be made, there would be a consultation period, and
Councillor Gowland and her Labour colleagues were urged to petition to stop
the cuts.

c.  Question from Councillor Thomas to Councillor Brennan

‘What progress has been made in implementing the council motions adopted
on Quieter Fireworks (March 20), Protection of Hedgehogs (July 21) and

page 20



Reducing use of Pesticides (March 2022)?”

Councillor Brennan responded by stating that a briefing note had been
prepared, which would be sent to all Councillors next week on the actions
taken as a result of all supported Council motions and questions in 2021/22.
However, in the meantime and in respect of fireworks, she confirmed that the
Council had issued a number of press releases including an article in
Rushcliffe Reports, which encouraged the public use of low noise fireworks. In
terms of its own operations, the Council only used fireworks at the Christmas
Light switch in West Bridgford and last year low noise types were used and
were well received by the public in attendance. In relation to the protection of
hedgehogs, the Council had carried out a range of communication initiatives to
promote the protection of hedgehogs including social media updates, articles in
Rushcliffe Reports etc. The Council’s estates, facilities and parks team had
been made aware of the motion and were ensuring that hedgehog protection
was integrated into current working practices. The topic of hedgehog
preservation had also been raised in operational working group meetings with
key agencies such as Via. Whilst the Development Management team was
requesting hedgehog highways (appropriately sized hole in fences to link
gardens and areas of open space) to be included on all appropriate new
developments and requesting developers to provide guidance/advice notes on
biodiversity net gain to all new occupiers explaining what measures were in
place on their plots, which included bat and bird boxes they find on their
properties. In relation to pesticides and herbicides the Council had adopted a
revised, and significantly reduced, spraying regime implemented by Streetwise
on all Council land with particularly sensitive sites being clearly identified.
Written procedures were in place for responsible pesticide use by the Council’s
Pest Control Service to minimise impact on wildlife and pets. An article on the
topic was included in the summer edition of Rushcliffe Reports and further work
would be included in the next version of the Council’s Environment Policy due
in late 2022/23.

Supplementary Question

Councillor Thomas asked if there were any further plans to use the quiet
fireworks during the current season?

Councillor Brennan advised that she was not aware, but she would ask that
that would take place.

The meeting closed at 9.50 pm.

CHAIRMAN

page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

Council
Thursday, 1 December 2022

. Polling Districts and Polling Places Review
Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Report of the Chief Executive

Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Strategic and Borough-wide Leadership,
Cllr S J Robinson

1. Purpose of report

This report sets out proposals for revised polling districts and polling places
following an interim periodic review required by the Electoral Registration and
Administration Act 2013 and as a consequence of a review of the Borough
Council’'s electoral arrangements undertaken by the Local Government
Boundary Commission for England.

2. Recommendation
It is RECOMMENDED that:
a) Council approves the:

0] proposals setting out changes to polling districts, polling places
and polling stations; and

(i) revised schedule of polling districts and polling places as set out
in Appendix 2;

b) Council requests the Chief Executive to formally publish the notice of the
conclusion of the review and its findings; and

C) the (Acting) Returning Officer be given authority to select an appropriate
alternative polling place (if required). Formal retrospective approval be
sought by Council following the election if appropriate.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1. To comply with the legislation requiring the Council to undertake periodic
reviews of polling districts and polling places and to implement the new electoral
arrangements determined by the Local Government Boundary Commission for
England.

3.2. To ensure that all electors have such reasonable facilities for voting as are

practicable in the circumstances and that, as far as is reasonable and
practicable, polling places are accessible to electors with disabilities.

page 23



4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

Supporting Information
Reason for Review

In accordance with the Representation of the People Act 1983, the Council has
a duty to divide the Borough into polling districts and to designate a polling place
for each of these districts. The legislation also requires every local authority to
start and complete a review of its polling districts and polling places between 1
October 2023 and 31 January 2025 (inclusive). Subsequent reviews must be
undertaken at least once every five years.

This interim review was required due to the changes made to the Borough
Council’s electoral arrangements following a review undertaken by the Local
Government Boundary Commission for England. The effect of that review was
to abolish the existing electoral wards of the Borough of Rushcliffe, (effective
for the next ordinary elections in 2023) and replace them with 24 new electoral
wards.

A further ordinary review of polling districts and polling places must be
undertaken between 1 October 2023 and 31 January 2025 (inclusive) as
required by the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013.

Review Process

As required by the legislation, a public consultation period was held from
Monday, 5 September 2022 to Friday, 21 October 2022, seeking the views and
comments of electors, interested persons and any persons or bodies with
expertise in access to premises or facilities for persons with any type of
disability. The consultation also included all Borough Councillors, all
Parish/Town Councils, and the Acting Returning Officer for the Newark
Parliamentary Constituency, which includes some electoral areas within the
Rushcliffe Borough.

During this period the Acting Returning Officer's proposals and maps of the
proposed polling districts were published on the Council’s website.

Requirements of the Review

When undertaking a review, the Council is required to give due regard to the
following considerations:

. It must seek to ensure that all electors have such reasonable facilities
for voting as are practicable in the circumstances.

o It must seek to ensure that so far as is reasonable and practicable every
polling place is accessible to electors with disabilities.

o Where possible, the polling place should be in its own polling district.

o Where possible, each parish should be a separate polling district.

o No polling place should be shared by two wards.

o Where possible, “natural” boundaries should be used, e.g. railways,

major roads, etc.
page 24



4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

6.1.

6.2.

7.1.

o All properties in a minor road or estate should, ideally, be in the same
polling district.

o Polling places should be “logical”; that is, electors should not have to
pass another polling place to get to their own.

Consultation Responses

A summary of the consultation comments requesting changes to the polling
places and polling districts is attached at Appendix 1.

A total of 17 responses were received during the consultation period.

11 of the 17 responses either supported the proposals or requested the
retention of an existing polling place which is already included in the revised
schedule of polling stations (see Appendix 2) and no further comment is made
in respect of these responses.

The remaining six responses requested changes to polling places or a polling
district in four electoral wards. Each of these responses has been evaluated to
determine if changes are necessary as part of the review process by the Chief
Executive taking into account her duties as a Returning Officer and proposals
added in the Appendix 3.

Schedule of Polling Stations

If the proposed changes, as set out in the report, are agreed then it is necessary
to revise the schedule of polling stations. As such a revised schedule of polling
districts and polling stations is attached at Appendix 2 for approval.
Alternative options considered and reasons for rejection

These are set out in the considerations and proposals in Appendix 3.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Council is required by legislation to undertake periodic reviews of polling
districts and polling places and to implement the outcome of the review of
electoral arrangements by the Local Government Boundary Commission for
England. Failure to undertake the review risks a legal challenge to future
elections.

The completion of the review enables effective planning and organisation of the
2023 elections and to incorporate the alterations to the polling districts in a
revised register of electors to be published on 1 February 2023.

Implications

Financial Implications

If changes are made to the polling districts and polling places then there could
be a resource implication depending on the nature of the change. It is

anticipated that these costs would be met from existing budgets.

page 25



7.2. Legal Implications

There are no direct legal implications. The report supports compliance with
legislation.

7.3. Equalities Implications
There is a requirement under the Act for authorities to give due regard to the
accessibility of polling places to ensure electors with disabilities can vote in
person should they desire to do so.

7.4. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Implications

There are no direct Section 17 implications.

8. Link to Corporate Priorities

Quality of Life Undertaking the review of polling districts and polling places
contributes to the Council’s Corporate Priority “Maintaining
and enhancing our residents’ quality of life” by enabling them
to effectively engage in the democratic processes.

Efficient Services | The recommendations in this report do not impact on or
contribute to the Council’s Efficient Services priority.
Sustainable The recommendations in this report do not impact on or
Growth contribute to the Council’'s Sustainable Growth priority.

The Environment | The recommendations in this report do not impact on or
contribute to the Council’'s Environment priority.

0. Recommendation
It is RECOMMENDED that:
a) Council approves the:

0] proposals setting out changes to polling districts, polling places
and polling stations; and

(i) revised schedule of polling districts and polling places as set out
in Appendix 2;

b) Council requests the Chief Executive to formally publish the notice of the
conclusion of the review and its findings; and

C) the (Acting) Returning Officer be given authority to select an appropriate

alternative polling place (if required). Formal retrospective approval be
sought by Council following the election if appropriate.

page 26



For more information contact: Kath Marriott

Chief Executive

0115 914 8291
kmarriott@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Background papers Available for | Notice of Review of Polling Districts and Polling
Inspection: Places

Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places
guidance

Acting Returning Officers Proposals

Submissions to consultation received

List of appendices: Appendix 1. Summary of Consultation Comments

Appendix 2. Proposed Revised Schedule of
Polling Districts and Polling Places

Appendix 3. Proposals in Respect of Responses
Received

page 27



mailto:kmarriott@rushcliffe.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Polling District & Polling Places Review 2022

Summary of Consultation Comments

Response Respondent Polling Station/Polling Comments
No. District
1. Colston e Colston Bassett Response from parish council highlighting improvements made to access for
Bassett Village Hall persons with disabilities to the building and requesting that Colston Bassett
Parish Village Hall be retained as a polling place.
Council
2. Normanton- e Parish of Response from parish council requesting that the Burnside Memorial Hall in
on-the-Wolds Normanton-on- Plumtree is used as a polling place for Normanton on-the-Wolds residents. The
Parish the-Wolds respondent stated that there is no longer a bus service from the village and that
Council Cotgrave is a distance from the village and without a mettled footpath for long
3 stretches. It was suggested that the Hall could accommodate two polling
< stations in the one building.
N
© 3. Resident e Bradmore Response from a resident requesting that Bradmore Methodist Community Hall
be retained as a polling place.
4. Resident e Ruddington Respondent wanted to see Ruddington Village Hall be retained as a polling
Village Hall place
5. Resident e Ruddington Respondent wanted to see Ruddington Village Hall be retained as a polling
Village Hall place
6. Borough e Gotham Ward Response asked for consideration to be given to the choice of polling place for
Councillor the Fairham development once new homes were built and that Gotham
Memorial Hall would be easier to access for the residents than Barton-in-Fabis
Village Hall.
7. Borough e Keyworth North Respondent supported the continued use of Platt Lane Pavilion as a polling
Councillor place




South

8. Borough Lutterell Ward Respondent supported the Acting Returning Officers proposals for the new
Councillor Lutterell Ward and the one polling place and suggested that residents who are
furthest from the station may benefit from a letter advertising postal votes.
9. East Leake East Leake East Leake Parish Council supports the Acting Returning Officers
Parish recommendations that an additional polling place is required due to the
Council increasing electorate in the parish due to new housing. The response
recommends the use of St Marys Church Hall for the Woodgate Ward of the
parish of East Leake.
10. Borough Abbey Ward Respondent’s preference is option 1C for Abbey Ward. The reason being is that
Councillor they believe people near Melton Road will look towards central West Bridgford.
11. Upper Upper Broughton The Parish Council are happy with the current arrangements in place.
Broughton
Parish
° Council
% 12. Cotgrave Cotgrave Parish Cotgrave Town Council are satisfied with the two current polling stations for
W Town Council Cotgrave, both have good access, car parking and facilities and believe two is
adequate to serve Cotgrave.
13. Borough Ruddington Ward The respondent is happy with the current arrangements in place
Councillor
14. Borough Musters Ward The respondent is happy with the proposals for Musters ward.
Councillor
15. Borough Bingham North The response related to the 4 polling districts in Bingham Parish that in the
Councillor and Bingham wards of Bingham North and Bingham South and centred around the following

criteria;

= it’s important to promote the use of polling places that are located within
polling districts

= Where that is not possible, residents should be able to continue the existing
polling places they are familiar with.

= most of the residents in BNWE have previously voted at the Town Pavilion,
Brendon Grove.




= there is no suitable polling place in polling district BSWE. Residents of this
area have previously voted at the Town Pavilion, Brendon Grove

= there is a suitable polling place in polling district BSEA. In the past, the Old
Church House on East Street has been used as a polling place. The venue
serves many community groups throughout the year.

Based on the above the following is suggested:

BNWE — Methodist Centre

BNEA - Bingham Arena (as proposed)
BSWE — Town Pavilion

BSEA — Old Church House

1< abed

16.

Bingham
Independent
Alliance

Bingham North
and Bingham
South

e The respondent made the following comments regarding Bingham South and
Bingham North wards:

BINGHAM SOUTH WARD

The proposal to use the Bingham Methodist Hall as the exclusive venue for the whole
of Bingham South Ward, which includes the Bingham South-East polling district and
Bingham South-West polling district, is not entirely an unreasonable arrangement (even
though the venue is actually situated in the new Ward of Bingham North.) However, the
Bingham Independent Alliance would request that perhaps Old Church House, on East
Street, is given consideration for the Bingham South-East polling district, as this venue
would be much closer to residents in this polling district area.

BINGHAM NORTH WARD

We support the proposal to continue the use of the Town Pavilion (Rugby Club,) off
Brendon Grove for voters in the North-West polling district area and to use the new
Bingham Arena for voters in the North-East polling district area. Also, the continued use
of Car Colston village hall for the villages of Car Colston and Screveton is an obvious
no-change arrangement.

As Scarrington village will be moved from Cranmer Ward in to the new Bingham North
Ward, the proposal to move voters from the previous venue in Aslockton to Car Colston
village hall meets the guidelines to provide a venue within the Ward boundary,
however, we suggest consideration is given to Scarrington Church as a possible venue
for Scarrington voters.




Borough e Cotgrave Ward e The respondent expressed concerns regarding residents of Normanton-on-the-
Councillor Wolds being asked to vote at Cotgrave Methodist Church for voting due to the
lack of a bus route and footpath provision with car being the only viable option.

e The respondent further stated that the traditional Polling Station for Normanton
has been Burnside Hall in Plumtree. Indeed, Normanton and Plumtree are/were
shared parishes in terms of the church and what facilities there are.

e The suggestion from the respondent is, given the relatively low numbers of
population, Burnside memorial hall be split and have the Keyworth Ward for
plumtree parish in one half and the Cotgrave Ward for Normanton in the other
half or alternatively use the kitchen as a separate entrance/polling station.

Z¢< abed




Rushcliffe Borough Council

Appendix 2

Proposed Revised Schedule of Polling Districts and Polling Places

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
ABBEY ABB1 Abbey Park Community
Centre Map 1
Buckfast Way Abbey Ward
West Bridgford
ABB2 West Bridgford Sports
Club
Stamford Road
West Bridgford
ABB3 Test Match Hotel, Gordon
Square, West Bridgford
ABB4 Test Match Hotel, Gordon
Square, West Bridgford
BINGHAM
NORTH Map 2
Bingham North Ward
This Polling district | BNEA Bingham Arena, Mercia
comprises the Court, Chapel Lane,
North East Ward of Bingham
Bingham Parish
This Polling district | BNWE Town Pavilion, Brendon
comprises the Grove, Bingham
North West Ward
of Bingham Parish
Car Colston Parish | BNCC Car Colston & Screveton
Village Hall, Car Colston
Scarrington Parish | BNSCA | Car Colston & Screveton
Village Hall, Car Colston
Screveton Parish | BNSCR | Car Colston & Screveton
Village Hall, Car Colston
BINGHAM
SOUTH Map 3
Bingham South Ward
This Polling district | BSEA Old Church House, East
comprises the Street, Bingham
South East Ward
of Bingham Parish
This Polling district | BSWE Bingham Methodist

comprises the
South West Ward
of Bingham Parish

Centre, Union Street,
Bingham

page 33



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Abbey%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Abbey%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bingham%20North%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bingham%20North%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bingham%20South%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bingham%20South%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
BUNNY
Map 4
Bradmore Parish BUBR Bradmore Methodist Bunny Ward
Community Hall,
Bradmore
Bunny Parish BUBU Bunny Village Hall
Bunny
Costock Parish BUCO Costock Village Hall
Costock
Rempstone Parish | BURE Rempstone Village Hall
Main Street, Rempstone
Thorpe in the BUTH Wysall Village Hall
Glebe Parish Wysall
Willoughby on the | BUWW Willoughby on the Wolds
Wolds Parish Village Hall, London Lane,
Willoughby on the Wolds
Wysall Parish BUWY Wysall Village Hall
Wysall
COMPTON CAB1 Gresham Sports Park
ACRES Gresham Park Road, Off Map 5
Wilford Lane, West Compton Acres Ward
Bridgford
CAB2 Gresham Sports Park
Gresham Park Road, Off
Wilford Lane, West
Bridgford
CAB3 Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road, West
Bridgford
CAB4 Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road, West
Bridgford
CAB5 Mobile Station, Compton
Acres Shopping Centre,
Compton Acres, West
Bridgford
COTGRAVE
Map 6
This Polling district | COAS Cotgrave Leisure Centre Cotgrave Ward
comprises the Ash Wood View, Cotgrave
Lea Ward of
Cotgrave Parish
This Polling district | COMA Cotgrave Methodist
comprises the Church, Bingham Road,
Manor Ward of Cotgrave
Cotgrave Parish
Clipston Parish COCL Cotgrave Methodist

Church, Bingham Road,
Cotgrave

page 34



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bunny%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Bunny%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Compton%20Acres%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Compton%20Acres%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cotgrave%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cotgrave%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
Normanton-on-the- | CONO Cotgrave Methodist
Wolds Parish Church, Bingham Road,
Cotgrave or Plumtree
Cricket Club Pavilion (see
further details in Appendix
3)
CRANMER
Map 7
Aslockton Parish CRAS Thomas Cranmer Centre Cranmer Ward
Main Street, Aslockton
Elton on the Hill CREL Orston Village Hall, Orston
Parish
Flawborough CRFLA Orston Village Hall, Orston
Parish
Granby cum CRGR Granby Village Hall,
Sutton Parish Granby
Orston Parish CROR Orston Village Hall, Orston
Thoroton Parish CRTH Orston Village Hall, Orston
Whatton-in-the- CRWHA | Jubilee Hall, Whatton in
Vale Parish the vale
CROPWELL
Map 8
Cropwell Bishop cwcsl Cropwell Bishop Cropwell Ward
Parish Community Building, Fern
Road, Cropwell Bishop
Cropwell Butler CwWCBU | Cropwell Butler Village
Parish Hall, Main Street, Cropwell
Butler
Owthorpe Parish CWOW | Cropwell Bishop
Community Building, Fern
Road, Cropwell Bishop
Tithby Parish CWTI Cropwell Butler Village
Hall, Main Street, Cropwell
Butler
Wiverton Hall CWWH Cropwell Butler Village
Parish Hall, Main Street, Cropwell
Butler
EAST
BRIDGFORD Map 9
East Bridgford Ward
East Bridgford EBEB East Bridgford Methodist
Parish Chapel, Main Street, East
Bridgford
Flintham Parish EBFLI Flintham Village Hall,
Inholms Road, Flintham
Hawksworth EBHA Hawksworth Church Hall,
Parish Hawksworth
3 page 35



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cranmer%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cranmer%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cropwell%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Cropwell%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_East%20Bridgford%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_East%20Bridgford%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
Kneeton Parish EBKN East Bridgford Methodist
Chapel, Main Street, East
Bridgford
Shelton Parish EBSH Hawksworth Church Hall,
Hawksworth
Sibthorpe Parish EBSI Hawksworth Church Hall,
Hawksworth
EDWALTON EDB1 Alford Road Pavilion,
Alford Road, West Map 10
Bridgford, NG12 4AU Edwalton Ward
EDB2 Edwalton Church Hall,
Vicarage Green, Edwalton
GAMSTON
Map 11
(Unparished area) | GAB n/a Gamston Ward
Gamston Parish GAGA Gamston Village Hall, Old
Tollerton Road, Gamston
This Polling District | GAHP Gedling & Sherwood
comprises the Cricket Club, Regatta
Holme Pierrepont Way, Holme Pierrepont
Ward of Holme
Pierrepont Parish
GAB1 Gamston Community Hall,
Ambleside, West Bridgford
GAB2 St Lukes Church Hall,
Leahurst Road, West
Bridgford
GOTHAM
Map 12
Barton in Fabis GOBA Barton in Fabis Village Gotham Ward
Parish Hall, Barton in Fabis
Gotham Parish GOGO Gotham Village Memarial
Hall, Nottingham Road,
Gotham
Kingston upon GOKI Kingston on Soar Village
Soar Parish Hall, Kingston on Soar
4 page 36



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Edwalton%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Edwalton%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Gamston%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Gamston%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Gotham%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Gotham%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
Ratcliffe upon Soar | GORA Kingston on Soar Village
Parish Hall, Kingston on Soar
Thrumpton Parish | GOTH Thrumpton Village Hall,
Church Lane, Thrumpton
KEYWORTH &
WOLDS Map 13
Keyworth & Wolds Ward
This polling district | KWKN Keyworth Sports
comprises the Association, Platt Fields,
North ward of Platt Lane, Keyworth
Keyworth Parish
These two polling | KWKS1 | Keyworth Village Hall, Elm
districts comprise Avenue, Keyworth
the South Ward of
Keyworth Parish KWKS2 | Keyworth Village Hall, EIm
Avenue, Keyworth
Plumtree Parish KWPL Burnside Memorial Hall,
Church Hill, Plumtree
Stanton on the KWST The Clubhouse, Stanton-
Wolds Parish on-the-Wolds Golf Club,
Golf Course Road,
Stanton-on-the-Wolds
Widmerpool Parish | KWWI Keyworth Rugby Club
Pavilion, Willoughby Road,
Widmerpool
LADY BAY
Map 14
This polling district | LBAD All Hallows Halls, Lady Bay Ward
comprises the Pierrepont Road, West
Adbolton Ward of Bridgford
Holme Pierrepont
Parish
LBB1 All Hallows Halls,
Pierrepont Road, West
Bridgford
LBB2 Lady Bay Scout Hall,
adjacent to 53 Mona
Road, West Bridgford
LEAKE
Map 15
This Polling District | LEELC East Leake Village Hall, Leake Ward
comprises the Main Street, East Leake
Castle ward of
East Leake Parish
5 page 37



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Keyworth%20Wolds%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Keyworth%20Wolds%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Lady%20Bay%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Lady%20Bay%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Leake%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Leake%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
This Polling District | LEELS East Leake Leisure
comprises the Centre, Lantern Lane,
Stonebridge ward East Leake
of East Leake
Parish
This Polling District | LEELW | St Mary’s Church Hall,
comprises the School Green, East Leake
Woodgate ward of
East Leake Parish
West Leake Parish | LEWL St Mary’s Church Hall,
School Green, East Leake
LUTTERELL LUB Walcote Drive Community Map 16
Centre, Walcote Drive, Lutterell Ward
West Bridgford
MUSTERS MUB1 Social Centre, Holy Spirit Map 17
Catholic Church, Victoria Musters Ward
Road
MuUB2 St Paul’'s Church Hall,
Boundary Road, West
Bridgford
MUB3 West Bridgford Baptist
Church, Melton Road,
West Bridgford
NEVILE &
LANGAR Map 18
Nevile & Langar Ward
This polling district | NLBA The Institute (Barnstone)
comprises the Barnstone
Barnstone Ward of
Langar cum
Barnstone Parish
Colston Bassett NLCB Colston Bassett Village
Parish Hall
Hickling Parish NLHI Hickling Village Hall, Main
Street, Hickling
Kinoulton Parish NLKI Kinoulton Village Hall,
Kinoulton
This polling district | NLLA Langar Church, Church
comprises the Lane, Langar
Langar ward of
Langar cum
Barnstone Parish
Upper Broughton NLUB Upper Broughton Village
Parish Hall, Upper Broughton
NEWTON
Map 19
Newton Parish NENE RAFAC Building, Newton Ward
Trenchard Close, Newton
6 page 38



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Lutterell%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Lutterell%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Musters%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Musters%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Nevile%20Langar%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Nevile%20Langar%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Newton%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Newton%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
Saxondale Parish | NESA RAFAC Building,
Trenchard Close, Newton
Shelford Parish NESH Shelford Village Hall,
Church Street, Shelford
Upper Saxondale NEUS Catalyst Church,
Parish Westminster Drive, Upper
Saxondale
RADCLIFFE ON RTM1 ROT Sports Association
TRENT Pavilion, Bingham Road, Map 20
Radcliffe on Trent Radcliffe on Trent Ward
These two Polling
districts comprise RTM2 British Legion Hall,
the Manvers Ward Radcliffe Hall, 17 Main
of Radcliffe-on- Road, Radcliffe on Trent
Trent Parish
These two Polling | RTT1 Craig Moray Community
districts comprise Centre, 42 Shelford Road,
the Trent Ward of Radcliffe on Trent
Radcliffe-on-Trent | RTT2 The Grange, Vicarage
Parish Lane, Radcliffe on Trent
RUDDINGTON
This Polling district | RUCA Ruddington Village Hall, Map 21
comprises the Wilford Road, Ruddington Ruddington Ward
Camelot Ward of
Ruddington Parish
This Polling district | RUEA Ruddington Village Hall,
comprises the Wilford Road, Ruddington
Easthorpe Ward of
Ruddington Parish
This Polling district | RUFL St. Peter's Rooms, Church
comprises the Street, Ruddington
Flawford Ward of
Ruddington Parish
This Polling district | RUMA St. Peter's Rooms, Church
comprises the Street, Ruddington
Manor Ward of
Ruddington Parish
SOAR VALLEY
Map 22
Normanton on SVNS The Hall, Main Street, Soar Valley Ward
Soar Parish Normanton on Soar
Stanford on Soar SVSS The Hall, Main Street,
Parish Normanton on Soar
Sutton Bonington SVSB Sutton Bonington Village
Parish Hall, St. Annes Lane,
Sutton Bonington
7 page 39



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Radcliffe%20on%20Trent%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Radcliffe%20on%20Trent%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Ruddington%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Ruddington%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Soar%20Valley%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Soar%20Valley%20Ward.pdf

Ward Polling Polling Place Polling District Area
District
TOLLERTON
Map 23
Tollerton Parish TO Tollerton Methodist Tollerton Ward
Church Hall, Burnside
Grove, Tollerton
TRENT BRIDGE TBB West Bridgford Methodist

Church, Musters Road,
West Bridgford

Map 24
Trent Bridge Ward

page 40



https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Tollerton%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Tollerton%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Trent%20Bridge%20Ward.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/councilanddemocracy/elections/pollingdistrictmaps/pollingplaces2022/2023_Trent%20Bridge%20Ward.pdf

Appendix 3
Proposals in respect of responses received
Responses 2 and 17 — Normanton-on-the-Wolds parish

Response content

Both of these two responses requested that electors within Normanton-
on-the-Wolds parishes continued to vote at Burnside Memorial Hall
Plumtree and that two polling stations be set up in the polling place, one
to serve electors in Plumtree parish and one for the electors in
Normanton-on-the-Wolds parish given that they are in two different
electoral wards and given the distance electors would be required to
travel if they voted at Cotgrave Methodist Church as proposed. Concern
was also expressed that electors would not be able to access the polling
place at Cotgrave without transport due to there not being a footpath
and no bus service.

Consideration Factors

Currently electors in Normanton-on-the-Wolds parish vote at Burnside
Memorial Hall Plumtree for all elections except Nottinghamshire County
Council Elections. This is because Plumtree is in a different county
division to Normanton-on-the-Wolds and electors vote at Tollerton
Methodist Church at county council elections.

One of the requirements of the review is that no polling place should be
shared by two wards, this is the reason the above arrangements are in
place and also why it is not possible to meet the respondent’s requests.

There are the following options available for Normanton-on-the Wolds
parish electorate

1. Vote at Cotgrave Methodist Church for all polls

2. Vote at Cotgrave Methodist Church for Borough,
parish, and County Council elections and at Burnside
Memorial Hall, Plumtree for all other polls

3. Vote at Cotgrave Methodist Church for Borough and
parish council elections and at Tollerton Methodist
Church for all other polls

4. Vote at Cotgrave Methodist Church for Borough and
parish council elections, Tollerton Methodist Church for
County Council Elections and Burnside Memorial Hall,
Plumtree for all other polls

5. Explore the availability of Plumtree Cricket Club
Pavilion as a possible polling place for the electors of
Normanton on the Wolds parish for either all elections
or for Borough, Parish and County elections only and
vote at Burnside Memorial Hall for all other polls.

page 41



While pedestrian access from Normanton-on-the-Wolds to Cotgrave is not ideal
due to two long stretches without a footpath, it is also not the best to Plumtree
as electors have to cross the busy A606 which does have traffic lights on the
junction but there is not a pedestrian crossing or pedestrian lights for crossing
the road and therefore isn’t the safest crossing. Additionally, there is an area
without a footpath as you enter Plumtree village.

Having analysed the number of electors voting since 2015 we have the
following information:

Election Number voted
Parliamentary 2015 106
Parliamentary 2017 94
Borough 2019 46
European 2019 54
Parliamentary 2019 99
PCC & County 2021 46

Polling Place

Burnside Memorial
Hall, Plumtree for
all except 2021
which was
Tollerton Methodist
Church

As expected, turnout at parliamentary elections is significantly higher than other
polls but it is interesting to see that the same number of electors travelled to
Tollerton to vote last year as did vote at Burnside Memorial Hall in 2019 at the
most recent borough council elections.

There is a balance to be struck between a location convenient for electors and
weighed up with the possible confusion of voting at multiple polling places for
different sets of election types.

Proposal

It is proposed to either approve the Acting Returning Officer’s
recommendations for Cotgrave Ward as it is felt that it is preferred to
allocate the same polling place for all polls where possible and given
there is no suitable polling place in the parish it is preferred to then use a
polling place in the ward. Allocating Cotgrave Methodist Church as the
polling place for Clipston and Normanton-on-the-Wolds parishes ensures
that the same polling place is then used for all future polls. Alternatively,
Plumtree Cricket Club Pavilion could be explored as a possible polling
place for Normanton on the Wolds parish given it is closer than Cotgrave
Methodist Church. It could then be used for all polls to achieve

page 42



consistency for the electorate or be used for Borough, Parish and County
Council elections only.

b) Response 6 — Barton-in-Fabis parish
Response Content
This response related to the new housing development at Fairham in
Barton-in-Fabis parish and requested the appropriate location of a
polling place for this area once new houses were built.
Consideration Factors
It is not anticipated that residents will start to move into this development
until April 2023 at the earliest and therefore it is unlikely there will be any
or very few residents in the estate before the time the next review needs
to take place.
Proposal
To revisit this area and its requirements when the next review is
undertaken.
C) Response 10 — Abbey Ward
Response Content
For Abbey ward there were 3 options provided for the boundaries of the
polling districts in the ward and preferences were sought as part of the
consultation. The response received supported option C as they felt this
better reflected the geography of the area.
Consideration Factors
This was the only response we received on this set of options we asked
for views on. The 3 options related to a new ABB4 polling district and its
size and boundaries. All options are viable, and a preference was
requested as part of the review by the Acting Returning Officer.
Proposal

It is recommended to draw polling district boundaries for Abbey Ward
based on Option C and it is that proposal that is submitted for approval.

d)

Responses 15 and 16 — Bingham North and South

Response Content - 1
These responses provided two different proposals for the polling places
in the two new wards created for Bingham North and Bingham South.

The first response suggested the following polling places for Bingham
parish within Bingham North Ward:

Polling District BNWE (Bingham North West Parish Ward) — Bingham
Methodist Centre

Polling District BNEA (Bingham North East Parish Ward) — Bingham
Arena (as proposed)

page 43



The following polling places were also suggested for Bingham South
Ward:

Polling District BSWE (Bingham South West Parish Ward) — Town
Pavilion

Polling District BSEA (Bingham South East Parish Ward) — Old Church
House, East Street, Bingham

Response Content - 2

The second response agreed with the Acting Returning Officer’s
Proposals for the Bingham parish polling places proposed for the
Bingham North Ward. Additionally, it was suggested that Scarrington
Church should be considered as a polling place for Scarrington parish.

In respect of the South ward the respondent agreed with the proposal to
allocate Bingham Methodist Centre as a polling place for Polling District
BSWE (Bingham South West Parish Ward) and suggested that the Old
Church House should be allocated as a polling place for Polling District
BSEA.

Consideration Factors

One of the requirements of the review and the allocation of polling places
is that where possible, the polling place should be in its own polling
district. This is achieved by allocating Bingham Town Pavilion as a
polling place for Bingham North West Parish Ward (BNWE) and
Bingham Arena as a polling place for Bingham North East Parish Ward
(BNEA) as per the Acting Returning Officers proposal as supported by
response 16.

Scarrington parish currently vote at Aslockton Village Hall but due to its
change of ward from May 2023 this will not be possible and therefore the
Acting Returning Officer proposed the polling place should be Car
Colston & Screveton Village Hall which is within the new ward of
Bingham North. The reason for this is that the distance for the electorate
from Scarrington is very similar to travel. On average the number of
electors that have voted in person at a polling station for Scarrington
parish at elections held between 2019 — 2021 was 30.

In respect of Bingham South Ward, both responses suggested the use
of Old Church House as a polling place for the South East Parish Ward.
The Old Church House has been assessed as to its suitability as a
polling place and is a fully accessible building and would meet the
criteria. There is no parking available for the building or any adjacent
car park however and vehicles would have to park roadside where
available when voting. However, the polling place is situated in the
polling district which wasn’t the case for the polling place recommended
as part of the Acting Returning Officer’s proposals.

In respect of Bingham South West parish ward that are not any buildings
that could be used as a polling place and therefore it has been necessary
to look at buildings in the surrounding Area. Bingham Methodist Centre
has been used successfully as a polling place for the Bingham East
Ward and the Acting Returning Officer’s proposals recommended using

this polling place for this area given the lack of any other building
page 44



available. This proposal was supported by response 16. Response 15
however suggested that the polling place for this area should be the
Town Pavilion, but this would mean it would not be available for use by
Bingham North Ward.

Proposals

In respect of Bingham North Ward, itis proposed to keep the Acting
Returning Officers recommendations as previously published
given that the polling places in Bingham Parish proposed are within
the polling districts and are suitable premises to use. This also
applies in respect of Scarrington as it is felt that the electorate will
have very little impact in being asked to vote at Car Colston
compared to previously voting at Aslockton.

With regard to Bingham South Ward the suggestion to use Old
Church House as a polling place for Bingham South East Parish
Ward (BSEA) seems preferable to the whole ward voting at
Bingham Methodist Church and given it is in the polling district it
is proposed to trial the use of this building as a polling place in
2023 and then evaluate its success as a long-term polling place for
this polling district given its lack of car parking provision. If a
further change is necessary following feedback, then a further
report should be brought back to council to enable a change to be
made for any election taking place from 2024 onwards.

page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Council
Thursday,1 December 2022

) Renewal of Public Space Protection Order (General ASB
Rushcliffe P ( )

Borough Council

Report of the Director — Neighbourhoods
Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Environment and Safety, Councillor R Inglis
1. Purpose of report

This report seeks approval to amend and renew the Council’'s Public Space
Protection Order (General ASB).

2. Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that the amended Public Space Protection Order
(General ASB) as set out in Appendix 1 be approved and to take effect from 2
December 2022.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1. The Council initially approved a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) on 2
February 2017, which controlled the activities of street drinking and outdoor
sleeping in key areas of West Bridgford, Edwalton and Gamston. It is a
requirement of the enabling legislation, namely the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime
and Policing Act 2014, that the Order be reviewed before the expiry of three
years. Accordingly, the PSPO was renewed on 5 December 2019, without
change. It is proposed that this revised PSPO will take effect immediately on 2
December 2022.

3.2. Owing to changes in the law and the latest crime trends it is considered
necessary to slightly amend the existing PSPO by renewing the Order for
restrictions on street drinking and removing the existing prohibition on outdoor
sleeping but to include certain additional restrictions and prohibitions as
specified in Paragraph 4.3 of this report. In addition, the renewal seeks to
include two additional geographical areas to be covered by the Order, namely
Lyme Park Pond and Broadstone Close Pond.

4. Supporting Information
4.1. The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides powers for
local authorities to introduce measures to address anti-social behaviour in

public places. PSPOs are flexible enforcement tools which apply to a broad
range of issues and are designed to control individuals or groups from

page 47



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

committing anti-social behaviour in a public space. To utilise the powers the
Council must be satisfied on reasonable grounds that activities carried out in a
public space will have or are likely to have:

A detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality.
Are persistent or continuing in nature.

Are unreasonable.

And justify the restrictions imposed.

Since 1 April 2020, there have been 35 incidents reported to the police in
respect of anti-social behaviour in the areas covered by the proposed PSPO.
These are detailed in Appendix 3. The Police also authorised nine dispersal
orders in this period, mostly in relation to begging and street drinking in West
Bridgford town centre.

It is proposed to remove the prohibition of outdoor sleeping, owing to the
changes in the legal landscape specifically the repealing of the Vagrancy Act.
That said there are still certain anti-social behaviours which the proposed PSPO
will seek to control. Specifically, these are as follows:

e Refusal to cease drinking alcohol in a designated area.

¢ Refusal to remove any items left or believed to be left on land when required
to do so by an authorised officer.

e Refusal to leave the location specified when given a direction to do so by an
authorised officer.

e Begging.

e Spitting, urinating, or defecating on land or street furniture.

Appendix 4 provides the full list of designated areas to which the PSPO wiill
apply, including the two new sites at namely Lyme Park Pond and Broadstone
Close Pond in Compton Acres.

Failure to abide by the Order may result in the issue of a fixed penalty of £100
with an early repayment reduction to £75, which if not paid in 14 days may result
in prosecution (maximum fine £1000 for most offences). It should be noted that
revised statutory guidance was issued in 2018 which specifically states that:

“PSPOs are intended to deal with a particular nuisance or problem in a
particular area that is detrimental to the local community’s quality of life, by
imposing conditions on the use of that area which apply to everyone. They are
designed to ensure that the law-abiding majority can use and enjoy public
spaces safe from anti-social behaviour”.

The Council undertook a consultation exercise from 20 September to 27
October 2022, which resulted in 60 responses. A summary of the responses
can be found in Appendix 2 but in essence the findings were overwhelmingly
supportive of the renewal of the PSPO as proposed.

In terms of key stakeholders, it is important to note that the local Rushcliffe
Police Inspector, is strongly supportive of the proposal and this position has
been endorsed by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.

page 48



4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

7.1

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Enforcement

There have been no fixed penalty notices issued since the original PSPO was
brought into force in 2017. However, the presence of a PSPO has been
considered as a useful deterrent to anti-social behaviours during this time, most
notably during the pandemic within and around Bridgford Park.

In line with the Council’s corporate policies enforcement of the proposed and
amended PSPO will be intelligence-led and proportionate and only undertaken
as a last resort.

The Police and duly delegated officers of the Council will be authorised to issue
fixed penalty notices should the need arise.

Alternative options considered and reasons for rejection

The Council could decide not to renew the PSPO thereby reducing the tools
available to both the Council and the Police in tackling anti-social behaviour.

Risks and Uncertainties

The risk of proceeding with powers, which are beyond those which the public
and key stakeholders consider are required, is that those powers are seen to
be unfair or unreasonable, which could be to the detriment of the reputation and
effectiveness of the Council.

Implications

Financial Implications

Implementation costs will be negligible and will be contained within existing
budgets.

Legal Implications

This report supports the use of statutory powers to deal with anti-social
behaviour. If approved, the order will need to be reviewed every three years
and a duty to consult thereafter where an extension is proposed.

Equalities Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken, which identified no
major or adverse impact.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Implications

The implications of the Crime and Disorder Act have been considered.

page 49



8. Link to Corporate Priorities

Quality of Life Ensuring that appropriate controls are in place to control anti-
social behaviour in the prescribed areas will have a beneficial
impact on local residents and visitors quality of life.

Efficient Services | The recommendation in this report does not impact on or
contribute to the Council’s Efficient Services priority.
Sustainable The recommendation in this report does not impact on or
Growth contribute to the Council’s Sustainable Growth priority.

The Environment | Tackling the behaviours that the PSPO will seek to control will
have a positive impact on levels of public realm cleanliness

9. Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that the amended Public Space Protection Order
(General ASB) as set out in Appendix 1 be approved and to take effect on 2
December 2022.

For more information contact: Geoff Carpenter

Service Manager - Neighbourhoods
0115 9148229
gcarpenter@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Background papers available for
Inspection:

List of appendices: Appendix 1 — Draft PSPO Order 2022

Appendix 2 — Summary of consultation responses
Appendix 3 — Summary of ASB incidents
Appendix 4 — Draft schedules to the Order

page 50



RUSHCLIFFE BOROUGH COUNCIL PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER NO.1 OF 2017 (as amended
2022) (‘the Order’)

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 (‘THE ACT’)
Rushcliffe Borough Council (‘the Council’), being satisfied that:

a) Activities as described in section 3 below (‘the activities’) carried out in a public place within
its area have had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and/or

b) It being likely that activities will be carried on in a public place and that they will have such
an effect

And that the effect or likely effect of the activities

a) Isorislikely to be of a persistent or continuing nature
b) Isoris likely to be such as to make the activities unreasonable; and
c) Justifies the restrictions imposed by this Order

And pursuant to the requirements of section 72 of the Act the Council:

a) Having had particular regard to the rights of. freedom of expression‘and freedom of human
assembly set out in Articles 10 and 11 of the European €onvention on Human Rights; and
b) Having carried out the necessary.consultation, netification and publicity

And being satisfied on reasonable grounds that extending the period for which the Rushcliffe
Borough Council Public Spaces Protection Order No.1l'of 2017 (as extended 2020) (‘the 2017 Order’)
has effect is necessary to_prevent

a) Occurrent or'recurrence afterthat time ofthe activities'identified in the 2017 Order; or
b) Anincrease in the frequency or seriousness of those activities after that time

HAS DECIDED TO EXTEND and AMEND the No:1 2017 Order (as extended 2020) under section 60
and 61.0of the Act as follows:

1. The land described in Schedule'below (‘the restricted areas’) being land in the area of the
Council te which the Act applies is'land protected by the making of this Order.

2. The Order may be cited as the Rushcliffe Borough Council Public Spaces Protection Order
No. 1 of 2017 (as amended 2022) (‘the Order’) and shall come into force on 2 December
2022 for a period of 3 years unless extended by further orders made under the Council’s
statutory powers.

3. The effect of this Order is to impose the following conditions on the use of the restricted
areas at all times:

Conditions in the Order which are requirements—

In the restricted areas a person commits an offence if, without reasonable excuse, he or she
continues to carry out activities which, by this Order, are prohibited, namely:

i. No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over containers (sealed or
unsealed) which are believed to contain alcohol, when required to do so by an
authorised officer to prevent public nuisance and disorder.

page 51



ii. No person shall refuse to remove any items left or believed to be left on land when
required to do so by an authorised officer.

iii. No person shall refuse to leave the location specified when given a direction to do so by
an authorised officer, subject to the following:

If the condition in this section is met an authorised officer may direct a person who is in
any location on land to which this Order applies —

a) to leave the location (or part of the location), and
b) not to return to the location (or part of the location) for the period specified in the
direction (“the exclusion period”).

The condition is that an authorised officer has reasonable grounds to suspect that the
behaviour of the person in the location has contributed or is likely to contribute to
members of the public in the location being harassed, alarmed or distressed.

a) The exclusion period may not exceed 48 hours.
A direction under this section—

a) must be given in writing, unless that is not reasonably practicable;

b) must specify the area to which it relates;

c) may impose requirements as to the time by which the person'must leave the area
and the manner in which the person must do.so (including the route).

Conditions in the Order which are prohibitions —

In the restricted areas a person commits an offence if, witheut reasonable excuse, he or she
carries out or continues.to carry out activities which, by this Order, are prohibited, namely:

iv. No person shall beg for money or for any other item whether expressly or impliedly in a
manner that causes or is likely to cause nuisance, annoyance, fear or distress to any
other person.

v. «No person shall spit, Urinate or defecate on'land or street furniture

OFFENCES

1. Itisanoffence for a person without,reasonable excuse to engage in any activity prohibited
by this‘Order.

2. Inaccordance with section 63 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order by
consuming alcohel or by'refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is liable on
summary convictionito a maximum penalty of a level 2 fine.

3. Inaccordance with section 67 of the Act, a person found to be in breach of this Order other
than by consuming alcohol or by refusing to surrender alcohol to an authorised person is
liable on summary conviction to a maximum penalty of a level 3 fine.

4. An authorised person may issue a Fixed Penalty Notice of a maximum of £100 to anyone he
or she believes has committed an offence as an alternative to prosecution.

GENERAL

1. The Council is satisfied that the conditions set out in sections 59, 60, 64 and 72 of the Act
have been met and that it is in all the circumstances expedient to extend the 2017 Order for
the purposes of reducing anti-social behaviour in the restricted areas.

page 52



2. For the purposed of this Order, a ‘public place’ means any place to which the public or any
section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as of right or by virtue of express
or implied permission.

3. An authorised officer means an employee of the Council, a person designated by the
Council, a Police Officer or a Police Community Support Officer.

4. An ‘interested person’ (as defined in section 66(1) of the Act) may apply to the High Court to
guestion the validity of this Order or any variation thereof on the grounds specified in
section 66(2) of the Act within 6 weeks of the date of the Order or any subsequent variation.

Dated this day of 2022
The Common Seal of

Rushcliffe Borough Council

was hereunto affixed
In the presence of:
%vﬂs d Signatory

page 53




This page is intentionally left blank



r/ 4

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Rushcliffe Borough Council

PSPO Survey 2022

Thursday, October 27, 2022




Total responses on PSPO public survey
Commenced 20 September 2022 and
Closed 27 October 2022

9G abed

60

Total Responses

Date Created: Tuesday, September 20, 2022

Complete Responses: 60



J

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

o
Q

Q
(9]
(6]
g

Business

Visitor to the area

Community representative

Organisation representative

Other

Q1: Which of these best describes you

0%

3%

0%

2%

B

Answered: 60 Skipped: 0

T T T T T

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

T

50%

T

60%

T

70%

T

80%

T

90%

100%



Q1: Which of these best describes you

Answered: 60
Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

g

o Rushcliffe resident 91.67% 55

o

)

o Business 0% 0
Visitor to the area 3.33% 2
Community representative 0% 0
Organisation representative 1.67% 1
Other 3.33% 2

TOTAL 60



Q3: Thinking about each item in the PSPO,
how supportive are you of each measure?

J

Answered: 60 Skipped:

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

|

i. No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over 10% 85%
containers (sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain... 5% °
8 ii. No person shall refuse to remove any items left or believed to 88%
«Q . . . 8%
o) be left on land when required to do so by an authorised officer... 3%
a1 4
O
0,
iii. No person shall refuse to leave the location specified when F 80%
given a direction to do so by an authorised officer, subject to t... 5% ’
iv. No person shall beg for money or for any other item whether F 83%
expressly or impliedly in a manner that causes or is likely to... 3% ’
v. No person shall spit, urinate or defecate on land or street 5% 93%
furniture. 2% ’

T T T T T T T T T 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

B Support EDon't support

Don't know



Z/" ™ Q3: Thinking about each item in the PSPO, how
1z supportive are you of each measure?

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

SUPPORT DON'T DON'T  TOTA
SUPPORT KNOW L
I i. No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over 85.00% 10.0% 5.00% 60
& containers (sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain alcohol, 51 6 3
3 when required to do so by an authorised officer to prevent public
nuisance and disorder.
ii. No person shall refuse to remove any items left or believed to be 88.33% 8.33% 3.33% 60
left on land when required to do so by an authorised officer. 53 > 2
iii. No person shall refuse to leave the location specified when given a 80.0% 15.00% 5.00% 60
direction to do so by an authorised officer, subject to the described 48 9 3
condition of use.
iv. No person shall beg for money or for any other item whether 83.33% 13.33% 3.33% 60
expressly or impliedly in a manner that causes or is likely to cause 50 8 2
nuisance, annoyance, fear or distress to any other person.
v. No person shall spit, urinate or defecate on land or street furniture. 93.33% 5.00% 1.67% 60

56 3 1



Q4: Do you support the PSPO covering the
open spaces at Lyme Park Pond and
Broadstone Close Pond?

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Answered: 60 Skipped: 0

83%
Lyme Park Pond, Compton Acres

19 abed

82%
Broadstone Close Pond, Compton Acres

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
B Support EDon't support Don't know



Q4: Do you support the PSPO covering the open
spaces at Lyme Park Pond and Broadstone
Close Pond?

Answered: 60 Skipped: 0

gl

o)

Q

)

% SUPPORT DON'T DON'T TOTAL WEIGHTED

SUPPORT KNOW AVERAGE

Lyme Park 83.33% 3.33% 13.33% 60 1.3
Pond, Compton 50 2 8
Acres
Broadstone 81.67% 3.33% 15.00% 60 1.33
Close Pond, 49 2 9

Compton Acres




PSPO review

Incidents

01/04/2020 — Male refusing to move on, coughing and being disruptive
03/05/2020 — Reports of people drinking/urinating on Central Avenue
07/05/2020 — Male begging on the Avenue

20/07/2020 — Female begging for money outside News and Cards
14/08/2020 — Drug dealing on park bench

16/07/2020 — Male begging outside Boots

09/08/2020 — Homeless male outside Boots

23/04/2020 — Abusive male on Central Avenue

04/06/2020 — Homeless male being abusive

24/06/2020 — Large group in Bridgford Park drinking/swearing
13/07/2020 — Busker on Central Avenue

31/10/2020 - People setting off fireworks on Central Avenue
25/07/2020 — Reports of aggressive begging

29/09/2020 — Report of female swearing on Central Avenue
05/10/2020 — Reports of begging

24/10/2020 — Male being abusive to staff at Café Nero
17/12/2020 — People drinking on a bench on Central Avenue
24/12/2020 — People drinking in the street

23/01/2021 — Report of homeless people trying doors
23/02/2021 — Reports of begging outside M&S

04/06/2021 — People on a bench drinking, swearing

14/07/2021 — Homeless male being abusive, threating to urinate

19/07/2021 — Reports of aggressive begging

page 63




22/07/2021 — Reports of males injecting drugs on Central Avenue
28/07/2021 - Littering

14/09/2021 — Reports of begging and sleeping in front of Hairscene
22/09/2021 — Reports of begging in sleeping bags, in alleys
18/10/2021 — Homeless male chasing females

30/11/2021 — Homeless male in a restaurant causing issues
25/01/2022 — Homeless male causing nuisance in bars along Central Avenue
06/02/2022 — Homeless male being abusive

14/06/2022 — Homeless male shouting, causing a disturbance
11/07/2022 — Homeless male causing issues, making threats
23/08/2022 — Group of males on the park causing ASB

31/08/2022 — Homeless male asleep on the floor

Dispersal Powers Authorised

e 9O

Inspector Lawton

| support the renewal and changes to the PSPO as proposed and that the attached is evidence of an
ongoing need for it.

page 64



G9 abed

SCHEDULE

The land shown edged black on Figure 1 and red on Figures 2 to 22 and described in the following Lists, which Figures and Lists form part of this Order.

S s x
7 X s A
g & ,// as %5 / 1
LB \&.
A 200, % D tas? =~ \G
dous '!l";g://’q':/"/\‘ Sy N\ N\ WA \,l‘-':g; ;‘>/ 22
'}]EE] LN Jiet il i+
7] ﬂ 28 ey - = | ——— D —\——
e . : Holme| 2~
Lo A Lane \7
£ %99 -
4 ,“JQ’ B\ i
“ : ! &Bassingﬁekd
Z 5\ ’\;‘*: )
/ () / ’A
X -+
littén Br ¢A —
P\ R SR
. / T . /.
Nottingharh __, /v
= —y e 7/, / A
Airport &
| @

Al &=

S, Y Witford

..’ Rerlll

’9:{ lebe % __,f’: ==

2> '™ Tollerton
- " 2 Wks

= s 7 J
"N Rushcliffe

Borough Council

PY S Yyt

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map. 5
With the Permission of Her Majesty's Stationary Office (c) Crown Copyright. \\
OS License No.100019419. <
Rushcliffe Borough Council

| =

L cd

Figure 1 - Indicative plan showing the whole area of the Rushcliffe PSPO No.1 of 2017




99 abed

1

1>
o
m
O
—
—
O
s
@
5
<
m

>

<

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permission of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. =
Rushcliffe Borough Council — 100019419

=

Figure 2 — Adbolton Playing Field

Adbolton
Cottages

ca
Simkins
Farm

%QLToﬂ LANE °

24m

Caravan

Rushcliffe

Borough Council



)9 abed

2
Q

-
g A\

N
\!
ol

SHE
h \ {..; »
m}“"{ﬁf\% @
L ! 33m
};‘j’}’}j)' &
O -
/(.agf @
XN A
\

\ A

' -
= O

L - __.-.-'-._
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

\ =
With the permission of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. /_.@ TR >\ Rushcliffe
Rushcliffe Borough Council— 100019419 e ! ’? o ‘I}. .

Borough Council

Figure 3 — Alford Road Playing Field




g9 abed

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Figure 4 — Boundary Road Playing Field




69 abed

T T e

= ¥
. BUCKFAST yai= .ty

=07
=T T ' L ’a’r ej
@ ﬁ.“"-\\%‘\ %’/// LLZN T L~
Mt =N

5

ik B L

' )

-. Iy of

|T“|—“.x " }};} = Y2y 'p

> :' i 4. - g ..

oz [

| {/ .Y 4 1.‘."5',‘ :
LN / [ 5 < ;

IS (LS

—
7,

=
o S
g ”-__'_. "'.’] N N
- e 1 O S
" cesuwegt::?:naw ce @ Crown Copyright. “ y P %

Figure 5 — Buckfast Way Open Space




0/ abed

Hggﬁ# 31m &“




1/ 9bed

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office & Crown Copyright.

Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Figure 7 — Denton Drive Play Area




Z/) abed

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permission of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Figure 8 — Edwalton Golf Course







v/ abed

L.

Asty Pavilion
<>

T .,

L

-

VIES ROAD
3 !lul_

T Bucann

——rmA R N E
s
Wit it

£ = i 1 .

AN Tl = e
| = ST

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

; ol
With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright. :‘_&4.:--
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419 Z}

ﬁriaﬁ;V  oAt dvtiRushcliffe
Warks ! A

o~ Borough Council

Figure 10 — Grantham Canal Tow Path North




G/ abed

BR
B e
\

55

-
s 17 war Memorial
Ah"if"'ll. Playing Field

;

: BB fay b o — .

2N m o FTT\
- - "y % = 3 1- -0 L, A B
xeeﬁ( o a\\ [\Bridgford | FoaES “.ﬁﬁ.-‘-kfﬂ_rfi:&

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office & Crown Copyright. S =' [,'|’rl‘i“.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

..-'* .

—-
o

_,_.,-—'; ¥ Izlea!'gﬁ‘\
~ ...~ Centre

. Su perstore

S &

D

’ {5
‘:#4 .

Figure 11 — Grantham Canal Tow Path South

7]
ﬁ, e
) Allotment
% g

Y, g i Gardens 7,




9/ abed

SRR £
'* " :’\\ \\\‘* & ~"1 -

: .
’\'-.
SR

@‘*" n’ 8

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

~&ZRushcliffe
W22 sBorough Council

Figure 12 — The Green Line North




page 77

With the permissionof Her Majesty's Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

The Green Line South

Figure 13







6/ abed

\ o0 <L)

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.
With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright.

Rushcliffe Borough Council -

100019419

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Figure 15 — Greythorn Drive Playing Field




08 abed

i

With the permissionof Her Majesty's Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Figure 16 — Oak Tree Close Play Area




18 abed

Spinney | ¢
Il

f '\-- -T-:l_"| r--_-__
i | AT
o A1
Landmere Y=o
Farm| % |

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.

Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Figure 17 — Sharphill Wood

< “Rushcliffe

‘Borough Council



28 abed

_?Elxéjgxxsﬂ_${ .iﬁgg%lgigbfﬁf{,;§  ##
/"f////%g‘ % // o *,
A o

St 5%

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright. y
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

Figure 18 — Lady Bay and The Hook




eg abed

Y VW
Qo O = €l
a i ol Voo P

.

o
£ .ll

s Aak
¥,

i
PR
5 % |

2
1"& f‘.'-f' .

A

e

oy T 52 FF r{ ': '1’!:.;':"
i) A
L

e e e

7 A st on,
1) i i

Th
20y,

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

..

With the permissionof Her Majesty's Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright. | f"’é‘”’ f"

L
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419 £ :
Bl A

Figure 19 — Trent Bridge Ward North

: 3@?




18 abed

, i,
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permission of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright.
Rusheliffe Borough Council - 100019419

e

=" PBorough Council

Figure 20 — Trent Bridge Ward South




Gg abed

Allot,Gdns

/ =

4 E
+
IV T or INGF ] (O
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permissionof Her Majesty’s Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.

Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419 R u S h C | l ffe

Borough Council

Figure 21 — West Park




9g abed

£

!

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map.

With the permission of Her Majesty's Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. us h C | |ff
Rushcliffe Borough Council - 100019419

orough Counci

Figure 22 Lyme Park Pond and Broadstone Close Pond




RUSHCLIFFE BOROUGH COUNCIL PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER NO.1 OF 2017

List of streets included in the Public Space Protection Order

Abbey Circus Mabel Grove
Abbey Road Manvers Road
Abingdon Road Marlborough Court
Albert Road Melton Grove
Annesley Road Melton Road

Avon Gardens Millicent Grove
Balmoral Avenue Millicent Road

Blake Road Musters Road
Broadstone Close* Orston Road East
Bridge Grove Oxford Road
Bridgford Road Park Avenue
Byron Road Patrick Road

Central Avenue

Pavilion Road

Church Croft

Peveril Court

Church Drive

Portland Road

Clumber Road

Priory Road

Colwick Road

Radcliffe Mount

Davies Road

Radcliffe Road

Edwalton Avenue

Rectory Road

Edwinstowe Avenue

Rosebery Avenue

Eltham Road Rushworth Avenue
Epperstone Road Sandringham Avenue
Ethel Road Scarrington Road

Exchange Road

Stratford Road

Florence Road

Terrian Crescent

Fox Road Thoroton Road
George Road Trent Side North
Glebe Road Trent Side
Gordon Road Tudor Road
Hawksworth Road Tudor Square
Henry Road Violet Road

Highfield Grove

Welbeck Road

Highfield Road

Wellington Crescent

Hound Road

William Road

Loughborough Road

Ludlow Avenue

Lyme Park*

*Added 2022

page 87




List of Parks, Playgrounds, and Common spaces included in the Public Space Protection Order

Adbolton Lane Play Area
Alford Road Playing Fields
Ambleside (Gamston) Play Area
Boundary Road Playing Fields
Broadstone Close Pond Area*
Bridge Fields Park
Bridgford Park
Buckfast Way Open Area
Collington Common
Denton Drive Play Area
Edwalton Golf Course
Grantham Canal Towpath
Gresham Playing Fields
Greythorn Drive Play Area
Ten Acres (Adbolton Lane) Playing Fields
The Green Line
The Hook
Oak Tree Close Play Area
Lyme Park Pond Area*
Sharphill Woods
West Park

*Added 2022

page 88



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 September 2022
	9 Polling Districts and Polling Places
	Enc. 1 for Polling Districts and Polling Places
	Enc. 2 for Polling Districts and Polling Places
	Enc. 3 for Polling Districts and Polling Places

	10 Renewal of Public Spaces Protection Order (General ASB)
	Appendix 1:  Draft  Order 2022
	Appendix 2- Summary of consultation responses
	Appendix 3, Summary of ASB incidents from Police
	Appendix 4: Draft schedules for PSPO


